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Wholeheartedly
committed to

Healthier
Living
OUR MISSION
To provide the nutritious,
valued and responsibly
produced food, beverages and
brands that nourish full and
active lives, every day
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A B O U T T H I S R E P O RT
In line with our sustainability goals
and ongoing efforts to minimise
paper waste, our Annual Report is
printed on recycled paper.

COMPANY OVERVIEW
AT A GLANCE

OVER

1

billion

BOTTLES OF WATER
SOLD ANNUALLY

UAE

#1

IN WATER, ANIMAL FEED,
FLOUR AND TOMATO PASTE

19

30

brands

4,000

EMPLOYEES ENGAGED
IN MANUFACTURING,
DISTRIBUTION AND
MARKETING

6

MANUFACTURING
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EXPORTING
TO OVER

IN AN EXPANDING
PORTFOLIO

OVER

O UR R E ACH

countries

OU R BRANDS

COUNTRIES

7
top ten
BRANDS IN UAE
MARKET SHARE

TOTAL ASSETS
(AED BILLION)

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(AED BILLION)

NET REVENUE
(AED BILLION)

NET PROFIT
(AED MILLION)
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Agthia Group is a leading regional food and beverage company based in
Abu Dhabi. Established in 2004 and listed on the Abu Dhabi Securities
Exchange since 2005, the Group is composed of a diverse portfolio of
world-class integrated businesses and brands. We provide high-quality,
trusted and essential food and beverage products for our continuously
growing consumer base locally, regionally – across the Middle East,
Europe and North Africa – and in select territories globally.

3.14 1.90 2.06 34.5
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Emirati by birth,
global by ambition

FIN AN CIAL HIG HL IG H TS

11
factories

global

NETWORK OF
TRUSTED SUPPLIERS
AND PARTNERS

COMPANY OVERVIEW
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MAY

EVENT HIGHLIGHTS

Agthia partners with
Emirates Red Crescent to
deliver staple food items
READ MORE ON PAGE 53 ↗

READ MORE ON PAGE 44 ↗

Agthia signs agreement
with Abu Dhabi Sports
Council to promote
healthy lifestyles
in the UAE through the sponsorship of local
and international sport events.

Agthia and bottled water
industry leaders form
the Gulf Bottled Water
Association
with the aim of addressing sector challenges
and adapting global best practices.

for UAE citizens across all CSD outlets
nationwide. READ MORE ON PAGE 52 ↗

Agthia receives Sheikh
Khalifa Excellence Award
READ MORE ON PAGE 11 ↗

Agthia's R&D division
supports internship
programme
for UAE university students of food science.

ADAFSA enlists Agthia to
establish research farm
READ MORE ON PAGE 53 ↗

Agthia appoints Alan Smith
as Chief Executive Officer
Agthia debuts region’s
first grass-fed yoghurt,
by Yoplait
READ MORE ON PAGE 44 ↗

Al Ain Water is recognised
as UAE's #1 most chosen
beverage brand

OCTOBER

READ MORE ON PAGE 11 ↗

Al Ain Plant Bottle is
recognised with GAMA
Innovation Award
READ MORE ON PAGE 11 ↗

DECEMBER

and six new members for three-year term.
JUNE

Agthia announces
measures to guarantee
food, water and home
essential products

Agthia announces election
of Khalifa Sultan Al Suwaidi
as Chairman of its Board
of Directors

JULY

Agthia launches region’s
first 100% plant-based
water bottle at Gulfood

MARCH

FEBRUARY

Event highlights
2020

7

Agthia donates the proceeds
from 500,000 Al Ain Water
bottles to Make-A-Wish
Foundation UAE

Agthia announces intent to
acquire Al Foah Company
and Al Faysal Bakery
READ MORE ON PAGE 56 ↗

COMPANY OVERVIEW
WHO WE ARE

Today,

we are a global provider of
quality F&B products, united
in our mission to nourish
healthier lives.
Directors and leadership team
Launch of Al Ain Plant Bottle and
Yoplait Grass-Fed Yoghurt
Acquisition of Al Foah Company, UAE,
and Al Faisal Bakery & Sweets, Kuwait

At Agthia, we are bound together
by our values and vision to inspire
healthier and happier lives
through the wholehearted choices
we offer. We are collaborative
in achieving our greater goals,
determined to create value with
integrity and succeed, agile in our
inventiveness and ability to adapt,
and responsible to our people, our
customers and our nation.

4,162

57

EMPLOYEES

362

EMPLOYEES
TRAINED IN 2020

NATIONALITIES

50

UAE NATIONALS
TRAINED
as part of
the Tatweer
initiative

2019 Launch of Al Ain Zero Bromate and

In 1978,

with a vision to support
our nation's food security,
the UAE’s late Founding
Father His Highness Sheikh
Zayed bin Sultan Al Nahyan
established Flour Mills and
Animal Feed Company, laying
the foundations of what has
become Agthia Group.
Animal Feed production begins

1981

Al Ain Mineral Water Company established

1990

Formation of Emirates Foodstuff
and Mineral Water Company – AGTHIA
– as part of Abu Dhabi government’s
privatisation initiative

2004

IPO listed on ADX with 49% of the
company offered to the public

2005

Appointment of new management

2006

Grand Mills Vitamin D flour

2018 Launch of Al Ain Vitamin D and
Al Ain Bambini

R&D agreement signed with Nutreco
United Khaleeji Water factory
commences production in Kuwait

2017 JV signed with Anderson Hay, UAE
2016 JV signed to produce Al Ain Water
in Kuwait

Acquisition of Delta Water Factory
Company, KSA

2015 Acquisition of Al Bayan Water
Company, UAE

Distribution agreement signed
with Al Foah
Launch of Al Ain Zero

Town Hall
Meetings

2012 Acquisition of Pelit water company
(Alpin), Turkey

2010 Production and distribution

Preserving our cultural
heritage, town hall meetings
offer our leadership the
opportunity to connect with
employees across the country
and to keep them informed
about our strategic priorities.

agreement signed with Yoplait

2009 Egypt ‘greenfield’ operation launched
2008 Acquisition of Al Ain Vegetable
Production and distribution
agreement signed with Capri-Sun

2007 Acquisition of Ice Crystal, UAE
* Images were taken before Covid-19 regulations.
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2020 Appointment of new Board of

P E O P LE &
CU LT U R E
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MI L E STO N E S

COMPANY OVERVIEW
WHAT WE DO

Our portfolio of essential, trusted brands continues to diversify and
expand, touching new lives every day

BRAN D RECOG N IT IO N

#1
Kantar Brand
Footprint Ranking

The Capri-Sun
business transfers
back to the brand
owner from
January 2021.
READ MORE ON
PAGE 54 ↗

BEVERAGES
& DAIRY

FOOD &
HOME CARE

AGR I CU LT U R E B RA N DS
FLOUR &
ANIMAL FEED

Al Foah and Al
Faysal Bakery
acquisitions were
announced in
2020. READ MORE
ON PAGE 56 ↗

Al Ain Water was recognised as
the number one most chosen
beverage brand in the UAE, and
the country's sixth most chosen
FMCG brand overall, in Kantar’s
Brand Footprint Ranking 2020.

Sheikh Khalifa
Excellence Award

Best of Middle East
Gama Innovation Award

In the presence of H.H. Sheikh
Hamed bin Zayed Al Nahyan,
Member of the Abu Dhabi
Executive Council, Agthia was
honoured with the Sheikh
Khalifa Excellence Award for
manufacturing on February
26, 2020.

Celebrating the latest
breakthroughs in the region’s
FMCG sector, the UK's Gama
Innovation Award recognised
Al Ain Plant Bottle for its use of
compostable bioplastics that
can withstand high summer
temperatures.
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CO N SU M ER B RA N DS
WATER
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Creating value through
our brands

COMPANY OVERVIEW
WHERE WE OPERATE

Extending our
global footprint
Exporting to over 30 countries worldwide from six manufacturing
hubs across the Middle East and North Africa, our international
business plays an integral part in our sustainable growth strategy

AGTHIA ANNUAL REPORT 2020

PRODUCT ION LOCAT IO N S

■ AGTHIA ASSETS
■ EXPORTS FOOTPRINT

TURKEY
PRODUCTION

13

Water

EXPORTING TO

UAE
Kuwait
Bahrain
Palestine
Morocco
UK
Scotland

R EAC H BY R EG I O N

Middle East

Europe

Africa

Asia

UAE ●●●
Saudi Arabia ●●
Kuwait ●●
Oman ●●
Bahrain ●●
Lebanon ●
Palestine ●●●
Jordan ●●
Iran ●
Turkey ●●
Egypt ●
Cyprus ●

UK ●●
Scotland ●
Ireland ●
Netherlands ●
Poland ●
Hungary ●
France ●
Austria ●
Germany ●●
Italy ●

Libya ●
Tunisia ●
Morocco ●●
Djibouti ●
Kenya ●
Somalia ●

Russia ●
Singapore ●
Vietnam ●
Pakistan ●
Afghanistan ●

KUWAIT
OMAN

PRODUCTION

Water

PRODUCTION

Water

EGYPT

SAUDI
ARABIA

PRODUCTION

Food

PRODUCTION

Water

EXPORTING TO

North
America
Canada

● PRODUCTION
● UAE-SOURCED PRODUCTS
● EGYPT-SOURCED PRODUCTS
● TURKEY-SOURCED PRODUCTS

Ireland
Netherlands
Austria
Germany
Cyprus
Singapore

●

UAE
Saudi Arabia
Lebanon
Palestine
Jordan
Turkey
Libya
Tunisia
Morocco
Kenya

Somalia
UK
Poland
Hungary
France
Germany
Italy
Canada
Russia
Vietnam

UAE
HEADQUARTERS
PRODUCTION

Water/Beverage, Food,
Flour, Animal Feed
EXPORTING TO

Oman
Bahrain
Palestine
Jordan
Iran
Djibouti
Pakistan
Afghanistan
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16 Chairman's Statement

STRATEGIC REPORT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Our first step was to enact protocols to protect the health
of our staff across the region. This allowed us to safely set
operations in motion to secure the raw materials necessary
to our manufacturing facilities and ensure the timely
distribution of supplies amid lockdown measures.
We are proud of the crucial role we play as a provider of
essential goods. In collaboration with government agencies
and the Abu Dhabi Agriculture and Food Safety Authority, we
vigilantly maintain a continuous supply and supplementary
stocks of the food, water and beverage products vital to our
society. READ MORE ON PAGE 53 ↗

Confronted with the collapse of the tourism industry and
a shift from office to home workplaces, we worked with
dedication to protect our core business by adapting to the
fluctuating needs of the market.
As movement restrictions disrupted food service revenue
streams, we created the online platforms and distribution
networks that delivered our products to customers'
doorsteps. As off-budget spending rose to develop new
channels, we worked diligently to optimise costs across
business lines. As trends shifted from panic buying to price
awareness to a focus on healthier choices, we aligned our
offering to meet demand.
As a result, we succeeded in preserving our leadership
position in key categories, securing our top line and
reaffirming our commitment to provide quality products
and services. Our drive to deliver value was further
rewarded with the loyalty of our customers when Kantar's
2020 Brand Footprint Ranking recognised Al Ain Water as
the UAE's number one most chosen beverage brand and
sixth most preferred brand in the overall FMCG space.
SUSTAINABILITY IN INNOVATION
Unwavering in our commitment to sustainability in line
with our nation's vision, we continue to innovate with a
clear focus on eco-friendly and nutritious products that
promote full and active lives. In 2020, we launched the Plant
Bottle, an exceptional advancement in 100% plant-based
packaging, which earned the Best of Middle East Gama
Innovation Award. Proactively responding to changing
customer preferences, we introduced Yoplait Grass-Fed
Yoghurt as part of our forward-looking practices to offer
more organic and health-conscious options to the modern
consumer. READ MORE ON PAGE 44 ↗

PAGE 54 ↗

The bold overhaul of working capital, in addition to the
development of new departments and leadership roles,
serve our long-term vision to enhance the quality of our
earnings as we begin a promising new phase in our progress.
In December, we announced the acquisition of two
major players in the convenience foods marketplace –
homegrown Al Foah Dates Company and Al Faysal Bakery
and Sweets in Kuwait. Expanding the group’s regional
footprint and product portfolio, the deals also demonstrate
our growth strategy as we explore opportunities in new
categories and markets and advance our ambitious plans
to become one of the top ten F&B companies in the region.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
As we set out on a new year, we extend our deepest
sympathies to all those affected by the Covid-19 pandemic,
salute frontline workers who have ensured our safety and
reassert our support of the communities we serve. Only
together do we make a difference.
On behalf of my fellow Board members, I would like to
express my gratitude to the government of Abu Dhabi
for its continued guidance and support and my heartfelt
appreciation of our visionary leadership. We are also deeply
thankful for the loyalty of our customers, the trust of our
shareholders and the dedication of our employees.

Khalifa Sultan Al Suwaidi
Chairman
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Dear shareholders,
In a year marked by resilience
in the face of extraordinary
challenges, we held true to our
shared values. As the world
grappled with a global pandemic,
we moved with determination to
fulfil our responsibilities to our
employees, our customers and
our nation.

FOOD SAFETY

BUSINESS PRIORITIES

With a firm strategy in place to position Agthia for robust
growth moving forward, we conducted a thorough
financial assessment of our businesses in preparation for
our next steps. Our deep-dive evaluation targeted four
areas: optimised channel management of our Community
Support Division, debt provisioning, portfolio streamlining,
and a mutual agreement with Capri-Sun to end our
licensing relationship by December 2020. READ MORE ON

AGTHIA ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Taking
bold steps
towards
growth

GROWTH STRATEGY

STRATEGIC REPORT
INTERVIEW WITH OUR CEO

Moving forward with our growth strategy, we will aim to
find the right balance between optimising our cost and
gearing up for the future. In Q3 we conducted a thorough
financial assessment of our business and took decisive
measures for the long-term, putting us on a solid footing as
we head into 2021.

LOOKING BACK ON THE YEAR, HOW WOULD YOU RATE
AGTHIA'S PERFORMANCE IN 2020?
The company has been through a year of huge change
marked by unprecedented conditions.
Significantly in terms of governance, new members were
elected to the board of directors at the end of the first
quarter, and this was followed by various senior leadership
changes, including my appointment as CEO. Looking back,
I believe we performed well on certain fronts, especially
with protecting the core business and preserving market
leadership in key categories. In a climate like that imposed
by the pandemic, I applaud the agility of the whole
organisation to pivot, adapt and find compromises and
offsets to deliver the top line.
Outstanding work was done in response to Covid-19,
beginning with the supply chain and the special situation
teams' efforts to ensure the safety of our employees.
Faced with an escalating situation, they dealt with it
professionally, quickly putting the resources in place to
monitor events and manage logistics. Part of that was an
exemplary response to requests from the government to
ensure food stocks. That meant working swiftly – and within

Notably, home confinement led to a reconnection with the
kitchen, and we can see the results of the baking boom in
the outstanding performance of flour in 2020. At the same
time, the UAE is a tourism-driven economy and a sizeable
portion of our business comes through food service. There
is no doubt that the HoReCa sector and convenience
channels bore the brunt of the Covid-19 lockdown, which
impacted water business revenues. As the market shifted
towards the home, our sales teams did an admirable job of
pivoting into other categories such as frozen vegetables and
other food items. Responsiveness was crucial, and we rose
to the occasion.

WHAT DO YOU CONSIDER THE COMPANY'S TOP
ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2020?
local and global lockdown constraints – to secure more raw
materials for the supply network and to meet the substantial
spikes in demand we witnessed in the first quarter.
At the same time, the group did an exceptional job of
driving cost optimisation and adapting to consumer
behaviour changes. A good example was the decisive
action taken to shift resources into online sales and home
deliveries. It was made clear to me early that one of the
company's great strengths is its speed of moving, speed to
change, speed to do.
It was a rich agenda. Given the big changes we have seen
over the past year, I think we demonstrated resilience,
adaptability and agility. I credit that to the quality of people
and mindset within the organisation.

Our quick reaction times to changing conditions was
certainly a highlight across a few areas of the business.
Offering consumers the option of home deliveries involved
setting up e-commerce channels and securing the logistics
of home deliveries. I know the team is very proud of the fact
that we put over 100 trucks on the road overnight to serve
our municipality channels. We were able to take orders and
deliver them within 24 hours, reacting more quickly than
the big retailers, who were still doing 4-5-day deliveries.
Another highlight is the impressive performance of the
flour and feed division. In 2020, they were able to beat
the budget, protect profitability and adapt exceptionally
well, not only over-delivering on the top line but also
holding that through to the bottom line. Along with our
supply chain and R&D teams, they played an important
role in supporting our outreach work with the Abu Dhabi
Agriculture and Food Safety Authority. A delegation visiting
our factories, laboratories and silos was quick to recognise
our capabilities and the potential to provide further support
to other programs.

"Given the big changes we have
seen over the past year, I think
we demonstrated resilience,
adaptability and agility. I credit
that to the quality of people and
mindset within the organisation."

In terms of international operations, our Kuwait business
saw 31.5% year-on-year growth in net revenues, and is now
firmly into profitable territory. We have also signed two
M&A deals in a milestone event for Agthia. Al Foah Company
is the world's largest date processing and packaging
company, and Al Faisal Bakery & Sweets is a household
name in Kuwait, effectively quadrupling our business in that
territory. These are rich additions to the organisation and
add measurable value for the shareholder.
DID YOU MEET YOUR SUSTAINABILITY GOALS?
The commitment of this organisation to sustainability is
truly commendable. Yes, we are meeting our goals, and we
hold to our values as a responsible company in answering
to both questions: Is it recyclable and is it recycled? The
answer is that 99% of the materials we use are recyclable.
And 35% of the materials we use are recycled. Those
are impressive numbers, especially given the fact that
organisations will often throw light on the former and
neglect the latter. We are currently reviewing our newest
acquisitions to ensure they align with the sustainability
targets of our overall offering.
We have taken big steps in innovation with the Plant Bottle,
which we launched early in 2020 at Gulfood. Like many
important advances, it's a long-term investment that will
bear fruit as it progresses towards mainstream use. We have
also partnered with Veolia to spearhead initiatives in PET
recycling and collection. Our commitment to environmental
sustainability is a key part of who we are and will continue
to be in the future. (READ MORE ON PAGE 24 ↗ and in our
standalone Sustainability Report 2020)
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Alan Smith discusses Agthia's
performance in 2020 and plans for
strategic growth moving forward

HOW DID MARKET CONDITIONS IMPACT THE BUSINESS?

AGTHIA ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Interview
with our CEO

STRATEGIC REPORT
INTERVIEW WITH OUR CEO

WHAT IS AGTHIA'S STRATEGY MOVING FORWARD?

We have a two-pronged approach. Domestically, we will
look at complementary businesses that we can bring into
our strong distribution network. Internationally, where our
investments in the past have been subscale, we will look
to bring bigger assets into the fold and to build our export
muscle as we acquire new brands. Our most recent M&A
deals are a good indication of the direction we are taking.
With Al Faisal Bakery, we add an AED92 million business and
go from 600 outlets to 3,500-4,000 outlets in Kuwait. That is
the scale we have in mind as we look to the future.
A big part of the agenda for me is developing our human
capital. We are running a sizeable business. The way we
succeed is by having a highly motivated workforce driving
our business every day. It is essential that we get our people
strategy right – we have to develop people, invest in them
and have the right capabilities in place to move the needle
as we go forward.
Our strategy results from an in-depth assessment of the
business and a clear vision of where we want to go. We
have taken our time and done our due diligence to validate
its effectiveness for the next five years, and not just for the
next 12 months. Organisations are not transformed in a day.
Moving ahead, we must ensure that our progress is agile
yet deliberately paced. We will integrate new businesses
effectively and the decisions we make in the near-term
will also benefit us in the long-term. We hope that we have
articulated what we are trying to achieve and living true to
those principles.

21

Growth. Our strategy begins with the basic premise that
Agthia is a big business, and we have to protect that
business because it provides the fuel for what we want
to achieve as an organisation. We need to ensure that we
are performing, expanding margins and maintaining our
leadership in that space. At the same time, we recognise
that growth domestically is more challenged because we
have a significant market share. It follows, then, that our
plans to increase our scale would be focussed around our
international business and M&A strategy.

AGTHIA ANNUAL REPORT 2020

"Outstanding work was done in response to Covid-19, beginning
with the supply chain and the special situation teams' efforts to
ensure the safety of our employees."

STRATEGIC REPORT
VALUE CHAIN

259

Cumulative Group
Cost Savings
(AED million)

40

(AED MILLION)
GROUP COST
SAVINGS 2020

Driving the success of our integrated businesses is a value chain
operating at peak efficiency and safety-focussed productivity

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Cumulative
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VALUE CH A I N MO D E L
E F F I C IE N CY
BUSINESS
LINES

Plan
Sales & Operations
Planning
) Market Demand
) Materials
)  Production

Source

Make

Deliver

Procurement

Manufacturing

Supply Chain

) Sourcing

)  Production

)  Warehousing

) Buying

)  Asset

) Logistics

) Supplier

Assessment &
Development

)  Distribution

Maintenance

)  Factory

Warehousing

)  Fleet
)  Distribution

Value Chain
Excellence

Customer
Service

Consumer
business
WATER
BEVERAGES
FOOD
TRADING ITEMS

Project
Management

FLOUR
ANIMAL FEED

COST-SAVING INITIATIVES
) Competitive sourcing

Continuous improvement is key to our
goal of delivering sustained value for our
shareholders. With an aggressive plan in
place to drive efficiency and productivity,
our operations in 2020 moreover proved
highly effective in facing the challenges
of a volatile market and impacted supply
routes. To meet market demand as well
as sales targets, a series of cost-saving
measures were implemented across
supply channels, production lines and
logistics networks.

of materials through
development of
alternate suppliers and
refining of specifications
) Improved efficiencies of

production lines

REDUCTION IN INJURY
FREQUENCY VS 2019

yield through enhanced
process controls

REDUCTION IN VEHICLE
INCIDENTS VS 2019

1.51
23

Responsibility

TRAINING HOURS
2020

1.25
LOST TIME INJURIES (LTIs)

18
12

responsible
responsible
agile responsible
agile responsible

on reducing carbon
footprint by conserving
electricity

At the heart of our productivity drive is a
safety culture built on continuous training
and evident in the annual reduction of
incidents across operations.

2.78

SUPP O RTED
BY OU R
VALUES
Agility

optimisation of
distribution fleet

3.8

26

Determination

) Dynamic route

18% 55% 17,894

32

collaborative
collaborative
collaborative
collaborative
determined
determined
determined
determined
agile agile

workforce with new
demand

) Sustainability focus

) Increased materials

2.28

Collaboration

) Rationalisation of

H S E -FO CUSS E D P R O D UCTI VI TY

Agri
business

O P ERATI ON A L PIL L A RS

Health, Safety
and Environment
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Maximising value
across business lines

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

LOST TIME INJURY
FREQUENCY RATE (LTIFR)

STRATEGIC REPORT
SUSTAINABILITY

MATERIALITY GRADING

L I ST ENING TO OUR
STAK EHOLD E RS

GOVERNMENT
ENTITIES

LOCAL COMMUNITIES
& NGOS

OUR
STA K EH O LDERS

CUSTOMERS

MATERIAL

ENVIRONMENTAL
ORGANISATIONS

SUPPLIERS

EMPLOYEES
BOARD OF DIRECTORS &
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our stakeholders are our true changemakers, and the driving force behind
all our continuous developments and innovation efforts. We believe that it is
crucial to engage and include all stakeholders to identify and better understand
key environmental, social and governance material areas that we need to work
on and invest in. Through an array of different communication channels, we
continuously listen to all our stakeholders and seek their feedback at all times.

MATERIAL TOPICS

The food and beverage industry is continuously impacted
by a range of market trends, changing consumer habits
and spending power. This year was a particularly
challenging year with the COVID-19 pandemic raising
various challenges to the food and beverage industry
both locally and globally.

Product safety and quality
Corporate governance and
ethical business practices
Food waste reduction

In line with the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) process,
and fostered by an external, independent consultant,
a detailed materiality assessment was conducted this
year to better understand and evaluate key sustainability
material issues for Agthia. The assessment included
an array of different external and internal stakeholder
groups, to capture a holistic and realistic picture of all
potential non-financial risks.

Financial performance and
economic contribution
Workplace health and
safety
Employee development
and retention
Packaging innovation and
circular economy

The results of this evaluation allowed us to identify
and rank 19 material topics weighing on our business
performance. In the following graph, we portray the
materiality matrix highlighted in our 2020 Sustainability
Report, where we delve deeper into the process and
findings of this analysis.

Workplace diversity and
equal opportunities
Operational waste
management
Responsible marketing
and customer satisfaction
Responsible supply chain
management
Water stewardship

MAT ERIA L I TY M ATR I X
5

Human rights

■ HIGHLY MATERIAL
■ MATERIAL
■ IMPORTANT
1

Food security
Employee engagement
and well-being
Healthy products

4

Climate change mitigation
and resilience

IMPORTANCE TO STAKEHOLDERS

In this chapter, we summarise our
materiality approach and the key
pillars identified under our revamped
sustainability framework, while
presenting key highlights from our
activities for 2020 under each pillar.

INVESTORS &
SHAREHOLDERS

IMPORTANT

Creating shared value through
sustainable operations is key to a
healthier environment, society and
economy. At Agthia, sustainability
is integrated into our day-to-day
business and our overall strategic
thinking as a company. Our
sustainability framework ensures
that our environmental, social, and
economic impacts are maximised
to deliver shared values to all
shareholders and society. To reinforce
these commitments and directions,
we present our first standalone
Sustainability Report for 2020, which
is published on our corporate website,
highlighting our non-financial
performance.

01
02
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

MATE RI AL I TY

25

Creating a healthier, sustainable way of life is at the heart of how we do
business at Agthia. Our approach is built on the conviction that business
can and should be a driving force for good, by simultaneously creating
shared value for stakeholders and communities at large.

HIGHLY MATERIAL

RANK
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Committed to
sustainable living

3
7

12
14

17

2
4
5
6

11
9
10
13

16
19

8

18

15

Community contribution
and investment
Biodiversity and
environmental impact

IMPORTANCE TO BUSINESS
3

4

5

STRATEGIC REPORT
SUSTAINABILITY

Our sustainability framework serves as our roadmap to
a sustainable future by clearly defining our sustainability
agenda and focus areas, guiding our business decisions and
transparently communicating how we intend to mitigate our
risks and maximise our positive impact.

We highlight below select
achievements to reflect each
of the 4 key pillars under our
sustainability framework. Details on
every topic and KPI are available
in our 2020 Sustainability
Report which is published on the
corporate website.

The framework groups our sustainability material topics
into four key pillars designed to guide everything we do
and provide a foundation of the Company’s sustainability
strategy. The framework summarizes what sustainability
means for Agthia and our stakeholders, identifying the areas
that we manage and balance to ensure an inclusive, resilient
and successful business.
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2020 SUSTA I N A BI L ITY
H I G H L I G H TS
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OUR SUSTAINABILI TY
FRAM EWORK

Fostering Diverse,
Healthy & Safe
Communities

Innovating & Rethinking
Product Quality &
Sustainability

Preserving &
Protecting the
Environment

Maintaining Ethical,
Responsible & Profitable
Business

35%
17,894
59%
524
73%

0 (Zero)

61kg
10,976
12%
1.04m3

0 (Zero)
57
2.06bn
7.4mn
100%

	Reduction in Lost Time
Injuries
	Hours of Health & Safety
Training to Employees

	Reduction in Vehicle
Collision Rate

	Thousand AED in
Community Investments
	Increase in Number of
Volunteers at the Company

MATERIALITY TOPICS
• Workplace diversity and equal opportunities (8)
• Employee development and retention (6)
• Employee engagement and well-being (15)
• Workplace health and safety (5)
• Food security (14)
• Community contribution and investment (18)

	Product Recall from
Markets

AL AIN PLANT
BOTTLE

Introduced

	Our door-to-door
RECAPP
recycling programme
introduced

23
83%

Supplier Site Audits
Conducted

	of CO2 per Tonne of
Production
	Tonnes of Recycled Waste

	Landfilled Waste from
Total Waste
	of Water per Tonne of
Production

 ifferent Nationalities
D
Work at Agthia
AED in Revenue

	AED in R&D Expenditure

	of Suppliers Undergone
Human Rights Mandatory
Self-Assessment

	Overall Customer
Satisfaction

MATERIALITY TOPICS
• Product safety and quality (1)
• Healthy products (16)
• Responsible supply chain management (11)
• Packaging innovation and footprint (7)

	Bribery or Corruption
Cases

MATERIALITY TOPICS
• Climate change mitigation and resilience (16)
• Operational waste management (9)
• Water stewardship (12)
• Food waste reduction and circular economy (3)
• Biodiversity and environmental impact (19)

MATERIALITY TOPICS
•F
 inancial performance and economic
contribution (4)
•C
 orporate governance and ethical business
practices (2)
•R
 esponsible marketing and customer
satisfaction (10)
• Human rights (13)

STRATEGIC REPORT
STRATEGY

ST RAT EG IC V IS ION

ST RAT EG IC MISS ION

Delight and nourish
consumers with loved brands
and food platforms
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Become a
regional F&B
champion,
homegrown in
the UAE
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ST RAT E G Y
2021-2025

STRATEGIC REPORT
STRATEGY

Gro
wp
ro
fi

arg

How we get there

Growth

Focussed brand
building

Growth
Mindset

Consumer at the
heart
Programmatic
M&As

31

ins

beyond b
ase

Strategic themes

Disciplined portfolio
expansion

tm

an d
p
Ex

Foundations

Lift and shift

Protect
and grow
base

Transformational
Leadership

Efficiency
Smart execution and
operational efficiency

Simplify
portfolio
Revenue growth
management
Route-to-Market
excellence
Lean operations

PROTECT AND GROW BASE

GROW PROFIT MARGINS

•D
 efend market share
•G
 row in under-served
channels
•G
 row in under-penetrated
customer segments

EXPAND BEYOND BASE
• Grow portfolio
footprint via expansion
into new categories
and markets
• Increase scope in the
value chain to capture
value share
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B U I LDI N G B LO C KS

Health, Safety &
Environment

• Improved cost structure
and asset utilisation
• Accretive investments and
cost synergies
• Strong brands and
investment in growth

People, Structure
& Values

Capability

Transformation
mindset

High-performance
organisation and
people

People and
processes
Best-in-class
systems

40 Agri Business
46 KPIs

33

44 Portfolio Expansion
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BUSINESS
REVIEW

34 Consumer Business

BUSINESS REVIEW
CONSUMER BUSINESS

In a year that highlighted the strength of our brands in the face of
market challenges, we continued to fortify our leading position
through innovation, channel transformation and a commitment to
serving and securing the needs of our customers
2019

55%

Sourced from springs,
Alpin is naturally alkaline,
differentiating this premium
bottled water from competitors
in the category.

In 2018, we
introduced the
world’s first Vitamin
D-enriched water in
response to a major
supplementation
need in our region.

CONSUMER BUSINESS NET
REVENUE CONTRIBUTION

68+13+6823D

TOTAL UAE – CHANNEL PERFORMANCE
VALUE CONTRIBUTION AND GROWTH – MAT Q3 2020

CONSUMER TRENDS Lockdown-triggered
panic buying (peaking in March) saw fewer
trips to the supermarket and larger baskets,
which resulted in less top-up shopping.
Home confinement led to a surge in cooking
activities, a preference for healthier options
to compensate for reduced physical activity,
and a drop in on-the-go snacking.

9%

6%

2% 3%

13%

68%

RETAIL TRENDS Intense competition
was marked by a price war among top
brands and intensified retailer demands
for promotional discounts in parallel
to increased consumer dependence on
e-commerce channels and home deliveries.

1.5%

6.2%
-3.4%
-10.3%

FOOD SERVICE Food service channels were
severely impacted by a sharp decline in
tourism and out-of-home consumption as
well as population erosion and business
downsizing.

The GCC's first sodium-free
bottled water was launched
in 2016, quickly rising in
popularity and market share.

Al Ain Plus
Vitamin D

56%

M AR K ET OVE RVIE W

Alpin Natural
Mineral Water

35

2020

Al Ain Zero

-8.1%
-20.3%
-3.8%

■T
 OTAL
FMCG
■T
 OTAL
SUPERMARKETS
■T
 OTAL SELF
SERVICE
■T
 OTAL LARGE
GROCERIES
■T
 OTAL SMALL
GROCERIES
■T
 OTAL RESTAURANTS/
TEA SHOPS
■T
 OTAL
PHARMACY

SOURCE: NIELSEN

Al Ain Bambini
Specially designed to
be gentle on babies'
stomachs, Al Ain
Bambini water is free
of sodium, fluoride,
bromate and nitrate.
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Consumer business

PRODUCT HIG HL IG H TS

Al Ain
Water Box
Yoplait LactoseFree Yoghurt
Offering our customers
a wider range of choices,
in 2019 we introduced
the region's first locally
produced lactose-free
fruit yogurt.

Al Ain Fresh
Our daily-squeezed
fresh juices are coldpressed utilising High
Pressure Processing (HPP)
technology, locking in
vitamins.

The first of its kind
in the GCC, our
Water Box is 100%
recyclable and is
ideal for the popular
local activity of
desert camping.

BUSINESS REVIEW
CONSUMER BUSINESS

Water

Category
brands

AL AIN WATER
KANTAR BRAND RANKING,
BEVERAGE CATEGORY

30+13+222312A

AGTHIA
REVENUES BY
CATEGORY

12%

30%

Responding to the impact on traditional sales
channels, Agthia teams took immediate action to
ensure the consistent availability of our products
to our customers. In 2020, we launched four new
mobile applications facilitating online orders across
our consumer and agriculture business lines,
doubled our trucks to meet soaring demand for
home deliveries and developed strong partnerships
with leading online retailers.
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Agthia reaffirmed its leadership in the water category,
recording volume market share growth of 0.5% in 2020
despite the 6% decline in category size brought on by
pandemic conditions (SEE MARKET OVERVIEW ↗). In a climate
that witnessed the impact of restrained tourism on the food
service channel, our concerted action in broadening the
scope of our platforms and deliveries resulted in net revenue
gains of 8% in the five-gallon home and office distribution
business. Al Ain Water made huge strides in sustainability
with the launch of the award-winning Plant Bottle (READ
MORE ON PAGE 44 ↗) and proved to be top of mind for
consumers in Kantar's annual brand ranking.

WATER CATEGORY
VOLUME MARKET
SHARE

#1
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29.4%

CHAN N EL
T RAN S FORMAT ION

23%

E-commerce platform
development

13%

LOGIN

l Al Ain Water App and

WhatsApp orders

22%

CONSUMER
BUSINESS
AGRI
BUSINESS

LOGIN

l Partnerships with

e-retailers including
Amazon, Noon,
Talabat and Kibsons

l A
 l Bayan Water App
l 1971 App serving our

CSD customers
Submit

■W
 ATER & BEVERAGES UAE + HOD
■ FOOD & TRADING ITEMS

620%
+9718002474

■ FLOUR
■ ANIMAL FEED

S

T

■ I NTERNATIONAL BUSINESS

O

R

E

Submit

+9718002474

GROWTH
IN ONLINE
SALES

I NT ER NATIONAL B USINESS
Instrumental to the Group's sustainable organic growth
strategy, international business registered a solid
performance across its five bases, demonstrating resilience
and agility amid exceptional circumstances. Operations
marked positive and often impressive growth in all
territories with the exception of Saudi Arabia, where we have
reset business fundamentals to make way for profitability
moving forward. In a momentous end to the year, we
acquired Al Faysal Bakery & Sweets in Kuwait, reflecting our
ambitious goals to expand our regional F&B footprint.

21%

NET
REVENUE
GROWTH

EGYPT
Playing a major role in the
net revenue growth of our
food segment, the territory
continues to deliver
exceptional results driven
by increased demand for
tomato paste and frozen
vegetables.

32%

NET
REVENUE
GROWTH

KUWAIT
One of the few businesses
granted special permission
to continue delivery routes
during lockdown, Agthia
made outstanding gains in
market share, beginning a
sustained growth trend in
both value and volume.

Doubtful debt
provisioning

At par

27%

SAUDI ARABIA
Implementing decisive
measures to reset our
business in the Kingdom,
we have secured promising
distribution contracts
aligned with our ambitious
plans for an expanded
regional footprint.

OMAN
With an improved
distribution model in
place, operations recorded
16% and 26% growth in
Al Ain Water and Frozen
Vegetables respectively, and
will roll out the production
of PET bottles in 2021.

TURKEY
A producer and exporter
of the premium Alpin
Mineral Water brand, our
Turkey business recorded
exceptional growth and
profitability in a territory
that has been significantly
impacted by the pandemic.

NET
REVENUE
GROWTH

50%

TOP-LINE
GROWTH

EXPORTS
Exporting water, food and
flour from manufacturing
hubs in the UAE, Turkey and
Egypt, our export business
recorded promising
results in 2020, with plans
underway for centralisation
and expansion.

BUSINESS REVIEW
CONSUMER BUSINESS

In a year marked by a return to the kitchen, Agthia's
food categories recorded significant growth driven by
aggressive in-store execution, channel expansion, portfolio
development (SEE PAGE 44 ↗) and lockdown-prompted
panic buying. Observing category growth of 12% and 2%
respectively, Al Ain Frozen Vegetables rose from fifth to third
place as Al Ain Tomato Paste maintained its leadership at
27% in value market share.

43%
AL AIN FRESH

23%
YOPLAIT

Category
brands

CO M M U N ITY SUPPORT
D I V I S I ON ( CSD )
As part of our commitment to supply Abu Dhabi and Al Ain
Municipality outlets, we provide a range of trading items
across essential food, beverage and home care product
lines. In 2020, we deployed a series of measures to secure
these essentials, and moreover to deliver them to customers
in need during nationwide lockdown by launching the 1971
mobile application. Offering an expanded range of products,
our trading items witnessed an impressive 26% growth.
Category
brands

Food
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In a standout year for Yoplait, plain yoghurt more than
doubled its market share since the product's relaunch under
the Grass-Fed proposition (SEE PORTFOLIO EXPANSION ↗).
Our Yoplait range recorded impressive growth in all but the
impacted food service channel (SEE MARKET OVERVIEW ↗).
Similarly, benefitting from consistent availability and high
quality, Al Ain Fresh juices delivered double-digit growth
in modern trade channels. Meanwhile the Capri-Sun range
bore the effects of the 100% excise tax on sweetened
beverages, which resulted in a price increase of 64%. By
mutual agreement, our licensing agreement with Capri-Sun
ends December 2020. (READ MORE ON PAGE 54 ↗)
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Beverages
& Dairy

MODERN TRADE CHANNELS
GROWTH IN GROSS SALES

In a stellar performance for baked goods, our Grand Mills
bakery business tripled following a substantial increase in
demand for B2B frozen products, offsetting the decline in
retail as home schooling shifted buying trends away from
on-the-go snacking.
Category
brands

200%
GRAND MILLS BAKERY
NET REVENUE GROWTH

BUSINESS REVIEW
AGRI BUSINESS

Our superior flour and animal nutrition lines continue to innovate
in line with the needs of the local and global community,
maintaining their leadership via swift channel expansion and
adaptation in a shifting business landscape

Agrivita Meat
Maker Range

Jointly developed with
farmers, the Agrivita Calf
Starter feeding program
helps maximise weight
gain after weaning.

Our popular highperformance poultry
feeds deliver consistent
results for broiler farms
nationwide.

2019

45%

41

2020

Agrivita
Calf Starter

44%

Grand Mills
Vitamin D Flour
Our patented technology
locks in vitamins, even
post-baking, offering
consumers 20% of their
daily Vitamin D needs
per slice.

AGRI BUSINESS NET
REVENUE CONTRIBUTION

M AR K ET OVE RVIE W
CONSUMER TRENDS Confined to the
home, and with fewer opportunities to
shop for fresh produce, consumers took to
the kitchen, resulting in a global surge in
baking activities in particular. At the same
time, work and school shifted to the home,
reducing demand for on-the-go snacks.

FOOD SERVICE In addition to the impact
of declining tourism and out-of-home
consumption, food service channels were
impacted by population erosion, business
downsizing and closures, and low cash flow.

935 5%
AGRI BUSINESS
REVENUES
(AED MILLION)

AGRI BUSINESS
REVENUE
GROWTH

AGRI BUSINESS CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP REVENUES
PERCENTAGE OVER TIME

Grand Mills
Paratha Flour

83%
64%
47%

FLOUR CATEGORY Flour witnessed a decline
in category size as a result of Covid-19
conditions and a drop in population across
the UAE, impacting market demand.
2007

2012

2017
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Agri business

PRODUCT HIG HL IG H TS

46%

2018

■A
 GRI BUSINESS ■ CONSUMER BUSINESS

45%

2020

Using flour sourced from
India, this specialty line
offers the authentic aroma
and flavour of home-made
paratha flatbread.

Grand Mills
Pizza Flour
This finely ground flour is
specially formulated to produce
the perfect pizza dough.

BUSINESS REVIEW
AGRI BUSINESS

32.9%
29.6%

Grand Mills further differentiated its portfolio with the
introduction of four new flour varieties (SEE PORTFOLIO
EXPANSION ↗), the sterling success of its innovations
securing a larger portion of the market in 2020.

Animal Feed
Maintaining its leading position, Agrivita reported singledigit growth and improved market share in core animal
nutrition channels. A swift response to the challenges of
dropping demand focussed efforts on route-to-market
fundamentals and expansion of outlet footprint in the
UAE. As a result of the decline in opportunistic grain trade,
overall feed business recorded flat growth.

2019

2020
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Cementing our market leading position in the nation, Grand
Mills flour recorded robust revenue growth, benefitting
from a marked rise in demand as the consumer baking
trend soared. The outstanding results were driven by a
strong performance in the core B2B business — despite the
negative impact of the pandemic on the category — and
a leap in export volumes in addition to the exceptional
returns in retail sales.
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Flour

GRAND MILLS FLOUR
VOLUME MARKET SHARE

The brand continued to innovate and expand its platform
with the launch of the Agrivita mobile application,
facilitating online purchase of its broad range of quality
products in a year marked by restricted movement.
Category
brands

Category
brands

Agthia brand
ambassador
Announcing the news
at Gulfood 2020, Agthia
appointed acclaimed
Michelin-star chef
Vikas Khanna as
brand ambassador of
the company's food
products.

Agrivita app
Agrivita works closely with
farmers at every step of
the product development,
selection and delivery
process. Opening up an
additional channel, the
newly launched mobile
application also rewards
customers through the
Agrivita Loyalty Program.

BUSINESS REVIEW
PORTFOLIO EXPANSION

GRAND MI L LS
FLOUR VARI E TY

Responding to the changing needs of
our customers, and offering them a
greater range of options, in 2020 we
developed and launched a variety of
new products in line with our goals for
sustainable growth and healthy living

A L AIN PLANT BOT T L E
In February, Agthia launched the region's first plantbased bottle. Made entirely of plant-based sources,
the revolutionary innovation is 100% recyclable,
compostable and biodegradable and achieves a 60%
reduction in CO2 emissions during the manufacturing
process, earning it a Best of Middle East Gama
Innovation Award. Al Ain Plant Bottle is planned for
roll-out across select retail and food service outlets.

100%
Renewable
Recyclable
Compostable
Biodegradable

YO P LA IT G RA SS -F E D
YO G H U RT
In response to increased demand for
environmentally-friendly and healthconscious dairy products, Agthia has
entered the sustainable category with the
debut of Yoplait Grass-Fed Yoghurt. Another
regional first, the nutritious yoghurt is made
from the milk of grass-fed cows with no
added hormones, and fortified with Vitamin
D, Calcium and Probiotics.

GR OW IN G
ESS EN T IALS
A busy year saw the addition of
13 new varieties in our line of
food service frozen vegetables
and an 8% increase in our CSD
range of food, beverage and
home care products.
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Continuing to develop our
range of culture-specific flours,
in 2020 we introduced Premium
Arabic Bread Flour (Professional
Range), Roti and Bhatti Flour
(Professional Range), Paratha
Maida (Professional Range) and
Pashtun Tandoori Flour.
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Innovating for
long-term growth

BUSINESS REVIEW
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

EBITDA

NET PROFIT

CASH FROM OPERATIONS

2.06
AED billion

168
AED million

34.5
AED million

301.3
AED million

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE &
INVESTMENTS

GROUP HEADCOUNT

71
AED million

4,162
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NET REVENUE
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2.01

2.05

2.00

2.04

2.06

356
315

430.5

254

320

206

263

174

210
137

168

284.2 301.3

240.4

3,722
119

100

3,979 3,941 4,035 4,162

106
71

146.3
34.5

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

ASSETS

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

BORROWINGS

EQUITY

R&D EXPENDITURE

CSR SPENDING

3.14
AED billion

775.5
AED million

536
AED million

1.90
AED billion

7.4
AED million

0.8
AED million

54 Financial Review

49

56 Acquisitions 2020
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O P E R AT I O N A L
HIGHLIGHTS

50 Covid-19 Response

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
COVID-19 RESPONSE

Agthia Group is responsible for over 4,000 employees
across a regional production and distribution network.
As the effects of the Covid-19 virus came to light, we
quickly implemented measures to safeguard their health
and well-being.

Values in action

RESPONSE PLAN A task force was created across functions
with a mandate to monitor the pandemic throughout our
territories of operation and set guidelines for worker safety.
Weekly updates were issued Group-wide outlining market
conditions, risk assessments and safety protocols.

Country
Classification
Chart

FRONTLINER SAFETY A large majority of Agthia's workforce is
on the front line of our business, providing the crucial services
needed to produce and deliver essential foods and beverages
to our customers. Applying industry best practices, we
armed every frontliner with the necessary training and tools,
collaborating across departments amid lockdowns to ensure
their safety. Measures included the provision of PPE and
sanitisation equipment, regular testing of staff and inspection
of delivery fleets, and access to health professionals.

Occupational Safety &
Health Risk Assessment
■
■
■
■

L OW RISK
MEDIUM RISK
HIGH RISK
EXTREME RISK

RISK LEVEL = RISK LIKELIHOOD x RISK IMPACT

RISK IMPACT

The spread of the Covid-19 pandemic
and efforts to contain it have resulted
in turbulent market conditions the
world over. At Agthia, illustrating
the agility of our business model,
we worked collaboratively to keep
our frontliners safe and to ensure
uninterrupted service excellence

5

5

10

15

20

25

4

4

8

12

16

20

3

3

6

9

12

15

2

2

4

6

8

10

1

1

2

3

4

5

1

2

3

4

5

RISK LIKELIHOOD

Covid-19
Contingency
Plan Matrix
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Our agile
response to
Covid-19
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E M P LOYE E SAFE TY

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
COVID-19 RESPONSE

We are driven by our mission to provide our customers
with trusted, responsibly produced brands. In 2020, we
demonstrated agility in adapting to unprecedented market
conditions, collaborating across functions to protect our
top line and strategically resetting the fundamentals of the
business with a focus on future growth.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
• Reprioritising resources to ensure
product availability at appropriate
cost and manage spikes in demand
• Doubling home delivery trucks to
cater to high demand
• Implementing cost-saving
initiatives to reduce financial
impact of unbudgeted expenses

COMMUNITY SUPPORT
Committed to serving our
community, we ensured crucial
food stocks at all CSD locations
nationwide, expanding our home
delivery fleet and introducing the
1971 App to facilitate orders. We also
joined forces with the Emirates Red
Crescent to distribute food supplies
to those affected by the pandemic
over a period of two weeks, and
launched a campaign calling other
companies to join the cause.

FOOD SAFETY & QUALITY ASSURANCE
• Observing workplace safety and
distancing protocols
• Overcoming market
shortages of PPE to equip
frontline workers
• Applying
supplemental
sanitisation
measures for home
and office distribution
E-COMMERCE EXPANSION
• Adapting to shifts in consumer
behaviour via expanded presence on
digital platforms
• Introducing multiple e-commerce
applications offering home delivery
• Launching targeted campaigns
promoting contactless options
CROSS-DEPARTMENTAL
COLLABORATION
• Collaborating across commerce,
marketing, supply chain and HSE
functions to meet shared goals of
safety and profitability
• Proactively developing new channels
• Supporting customers through
business disruptions

ADAFSA
DELEGATION
VISITS
GRAND MILLS
FACILITIES
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SECURITY STOCKS
Responding to government requests,
we took immediate measures to
increase security stocks of essential
goods and raw materials. Further
to this, in June we were enlisted
by the Abu Dhabi Agriculture and
Food Safety Authority (ADAFSA)
to establish a research farm with
the aim of improving agricultural
sustainability in the emirate. In
October, ADAFSA delegates led by
H.E. Saeed Al Bahri Salem Al Ameri
visited our laboratory and Grand
Mills factory, reinforcing our support
of the UAE’s food security agenda.
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BUS IN ESS CO NT INU ITY

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
FINANCIAL REVIEW

Armed with a clear strategy, in 2020 we
performed a thorough assessment of our
financials and took bold steps to ensure a strong
footing and boosted quality of earnings as we
take the next steps towards success

LIC E N S E
R E -A SS E SS M E N T
Following the implementation of the 100%
excise tax on sweetened beverages in 2020, we
signed a mutual agreement with Capri-Sun to
end the licensing relationship as of December
2020. This resulted in a one-time AED9.5 million
full impairment of assets and inventories. The
business transfers back to the brand owner from
January 2021 as we focus our efforts on delivering
healthy product offerings that meet the changing
needs of our customers.

As part of a valued partnership, Agthia's
Community Support Division provides essential
stocks to Abu Dhabi and Al Ain Municipality stores.
In 2020 we further strengthened our operations
across this strategically important channel by
taking ownership of the payment and collection
process. Bringing us closer to consumers and
valuable real-time data, this decision results in a
one-time accounting adjustment amounting to
AED7.7 million.

P O RT FOL I O
RAT I ONAL I SATI ON

D O U BT F U L D E BT
P R OV IS IO N I N G
In our efforts to address market liquidity issues, we
conducted an in-depth review and risk assessment
of outstanding receivables, the result of which
was an aggregate of AED58 million of bad debt
provisioning for the year. In 2020 we appointed
a new head of international business and took
measures to reset our base in KSA, conducting a
forensic audit, filing legal cases against bad-debt
customers and securing promising contracts
aligned with our plans for sustainable growth in
the country and the region.

In a proactive effort aligned with our growth
strategy, we conducted a thorough review of
our inventory, streamlining our portfolio by
eliminating under-productive and obsolete SKUs
and slow-moving finished goods. Paving the way
to long-term benefits, the portfolio rationalisation
accounts for net provisions of AED7.2 million.

55

Laying the
groundwork
for long-term
growth

C H A NNE L
M A N AGE ME NT
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Deep-dive financial
assessment

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
ACQUISITIONS

Strategy in action

Delivering added value to our
shareholders, in 2020 we acquired
Al Foah Company and Al Faysal
Bakery & Sweets, translating our
M&A strategy into synergistic
alliances with two leaders in their
fields and marking a new stage in
our regional expansion

Inorganic:
fast-paced,
high-impact

Steer culture
internally towards a
model in which M&A is a
core business priority
Align internal
stakeholders with M&A
objectives

Continue to enhance
capabilities in pursuit
of excellence in
programmatic M&A
execution

Accretive
to our
shareholders

Synergistic

Meaningful
in size

Improve our
competitive
position

Enhance
our product
offerings
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Acquisitions
2020

Identify and acquire
businesses that align
with the Group’s
expansion strategy in
terms of both existing
and new categories
and geographies.

Ensure M&A
transactions
meet strategy
criteria
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P R O G RA M M AT I C M &A:
O U R G R OW T H ST RAT EGY

Act in the best
interest of Agthia’s
shareholders
Ensure shareholders
are informed of M&A
status at all times

Successfully
integrate acquired
companies and
realise synergies

Structure
transactions
optimally in terms of
use of resources and
deployed capital

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
ACQUISITIONS

EMPLOYEES

EMPLOYEES

REVENUES 2020

438 500+

87

AED million
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REVENUES 2020

500+

AED million

A L FAYS A L B A K E RY & S W E E TS

ACQUISITION ANNOUNCED OCT 2020 | COMPLETED JAN 2021

ACQUISITION ANNOUNCED DEC 2020 | COMPLETED JAN 2021

Established in 2005 by the Abu Dhabi government, Al Foah is
the world's largest date receiving and processing company,
exporting to over 45 international markets including India,
Bangladesh, Oman, Indonesia and Malaysia. The company's
product portfolio consists of a wide variety of whole and
value-added dates and date-based products, sold in bulk
and retail. Two date processing factories and eight receiving
centres across the UAE handle over 160,000 metric tons
per season.

Al Faysal Bakery and Sweets is one of Kuwait’s largest and
most reputable bakeries, a household name with strong
brand heritage dating back to its establishment in 1991.
With an expansive range of fresh baked goods, including
packaged croissants, pastries, mini pizzas, rusks and cakes,
the company distributes to over 4,700 customers across
all key retail channels, and is a market leading supplier of
bakery products to schools.
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Further diversifying Agthia's product portfolio,
Al Faysal Bakery plays an important role in
support of the Group’s strategic growth,
expanding our regional footprint and
adding significant scale to our existing
operations in Kuwait.

The transaction serves as a milestone in Agthia's
expansion trajectory. With the integration of Al Foah
as a strategic business unit, Agthia becomes the
domestic market leader in four essential food and
beverage categories – water, dates, flour and animal
feed – and one of the top 10 F&B companies in the
MENA region.

Al Faysal's baked goods and
snacks are distributed to
over 4,700 customers

90% of Al Foah’s total
production is exported to over
45 markets worldwide

CATEGORIES

FOOTPRINT

RATIONALE

VALUE CREATION

CATEGORIES

FOOTPRINT

RATIONALE

VALUE CREATION

Dates and
derivatives,
confectionary

International with
strong base in
GCC and Asia

Scale, category
(superfood),
brand

Synergies,
premiumisation,
diversification

Bakery,
snacking

Kuwait

Brand,
market scale

Synergies,
capabilities,
wider customer
base
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of joint stock companies’ (Resolution 3). This report gives
an overview of the Group’s corporate governance systems
and procedures as of December 31, 2020 and has been
filed with Securities and Commodities Authority (SCA), and
posted on the Abu Dhabi Exchange (ADX) website and the
Group’s website.

For our company, this means leadership by a management
team of uncompromising integrity under disciplined
oversight from our Board of Directors, a commitment to
shareholder and stakeholder engagement, and creation of
sustainable value through business fundamentals, corporate
social responsibility, and environmental stewardship.

IMPLEMENTATION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRINCIPLES
Effectively applied corporate governance guidelines
are the foundation of business integrity and supports
management’s commitment to deliver value to shareholders
through sustainable business results. The Group maintains
high levels of transparency and accountability which
includes adopting and monitoring appropriate corporate
strategies, objectives, and procedures that comply with its
legal and ethical responsibilities.

The Board is fully committed to consistently protecting the
interests of all shareholders through the application of high
standards of corporate governance.

Agthia Group PJSC (the Group) complies with the
requirements of the ‘Chairman of Authority's Board of
Directors' Resolution No. 3 of 2020 concerning the approval

The Board has established and approved several Group
policies and guidelines for achieving robust corporate
governance standards. Following are the pertinent policies
in this regard:
• C
 ode of Business Conduct to guide the conduct of
Directors and Employees and prevent any influence on
the employees’ independence and objectivity addressing
matters such as conflict of interest and integrity, gifts and
confidentiality.
• An appropriate delegation of authority to ensure
efficient and effective decision making which balances
empowerment against controls.

• I nvestors Relations Policy to inform Shareholders and
Stakeholders of how the Group intends to keep them aware
of material developments as well as to provide a framework
of processes upon which Agthia can successfully implement
its Investors Relations Program.
• Trading in Group Shares Policy to ensure that Directors and
Employees do not make improper use of price sensitive
information, gained through their positions in the Group.
• Dividend Distribution Policy to define the Group’s position
on appropriation of profit and declaration/ distribution of
dividend.
• Risk Management Policy to promote adequate and
consistent risk management practices as well as a structured
process for identifying, assessing, prioritizing, managing and
reporting material risks across the Group.
• Business Continuity Management Policy to implement a
Business Continuity Management System, compliant with
international and local standards, to improve the overall
business resilience of the Group.
• Information Security Policy to underscore Agthia’s
commitment and support towards the management of
information security at Agthia.
• Whistleblowing Policy to provide Employees a mechanism
to confidentially report any violations of the Code of
Business Conduct, internal policies and procedures, or
applicable laws and regulations.

GROUP GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
DEALING IN COMPANY SECURITIES
None of the Board Members have traded in the Company’s shares during 2020.

SHAREHOLDERS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (BoD)
AUDIT COMMITTEE

INTERNAL
CONTROL
DEPARTMENT

EXTERNAL
AUDIT

COMPANY SECRETARY
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

CONDUCT &
VALUES
COMMITTEE

RISK
MANAGEMENT

CEO

INSIDER TRADING
MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

COMMODITY RISK
MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

Total
Sale

Total
Purchase

Board Chairman

Nil

Nil

Nil

Salmeen Obaid Alameri

Board Vice-Chairman

Nil

Nil

Nil

Khamis Buharoon Al Shamsi

Board Member

Nil

Nil

Nil

HE Khalaf Al Hammadi

Board Member

Nil

Nil

Nil

Gil Adotevi

Board Member

Nil

Nil

Nil

Gianluca Fabbri

Board Member

Nil

Nil

Nil

Saifuddin Rupawala

Board Member

Nil

Nil

Nil

Position

Khalifa Sultan Al Suwaidi

Additionally, none of the Board Members’ direct family members have traded in the Company’s shares during 2020.

LEADERSHIP TEAM

RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

Owned shares as
on 31/12/2020

Board Member Name

BUSINESS CONTINUITY
MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE
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At Agthia, we believe that a solid
foundation of good corporate
governance and business ethics
significantly contributes to our
company's ability to compete
effectively and realize our full
value potential.

The Group’s Corporate Governance Manual is approved
by the Board to reflect the requirements of Resolution
3, determines the structures and processes by which the
Group is controlled through its Board and the guiding
governance principles followed by the Group. The manual
clarifies the roles and responsibilities of all stakeholders
involved in governance processes including the General
Assembly of Shareholders, the Board of Directors including
the Chairman of the Board and Board Committees, the
Chief Executive Officer, the Executive Management, relevant
Management Committees, Internal Audit, External Audit,
Company Secretary and other stakeholders.
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The Board of Directors’ role is to represent the
shareholders and be accountable to them for
creating and delivering sustainable value through the
effective governance of the business. It is the Board’s
responsibility to ensure that effective management is in
place to implement the Group’s strategy.
The Board is the primary decision-making body for all
matters that are considered to be material to the Group.
The Board has a rolling agenda to ensure that the key
areas remain in focus throughout the year.
BOARD STRUCTURE AND COMPOSITION
The present Board of Directors was elected at the Annual
General Meeting held on April 16, 2020 for a term of
three years. The Board currently has seven members,
comprising an Independent Non-Executive Chairman
and six Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Group supports the inclusion and participation
of women in business and believes that diversity
contributes to the quality and effectiveness of
governance. For the last election of the Board, the
Group invited nominations from both male and female
candidates; however, no nominations of female
representatives were received. Hence, we do not have
any female representation in our current Board.
The Board ensures, on an ongoing basis, that Directors
possess the required skills, knowledge and experience
necessary to fulfil their obligations. Composition of the
current Board of Directors:

KHALIFA SULTAN AL SUWAIDI
Chairman

SALMEEN OBAID ALAMERI
Vice Chairman

KHAMIS BUHAROON AL SHAMSI
Member

Non-Executive, Independent
Director since: April 2020

Non-Executive, Independent
Director since: April 2020

Non-Executive, Independent
Director since: April 2014

Experience:
He is the Chief Investment Officer at ADQ and manages
ADQ’s portfolio of assets in the Utilities, Industries,
Logistics and Food & Agriculture sectors to deliver longterm growth and value. He brings a broad set of skills
and experience to his additional role through serving on
multiple boards and in other senior capacities across a
variety of Abu Dhabi government assets.

Experience:
He holds the position of Chief Executive Officer at Al Dahra
Agriculture and has more than 20 years of commercial and
operational management expertise, notably in the feed and
food sector. In his current role at Al Dahra, Alameri oversees
global logistics, drives business growth within the Human
Food division, as well as manages the global expansion of
product lines and new geographies for the company.

Experience:
Mr. Khamis was reelected to serve another term on Agthia
Group’s Board. With over 30 years he has held various
distinguished leadership positions in the banking and
finance sector.

Other Board memberships:

Other Board memberships:

Other Board memberships:

CHAIRMAN, SENAAT GENERAL HOLDING CORPORATION
CHAIRMAN, NATIONAL PETROLEUM CONSTRUCTION
COMPANY (NPCC)
VICE CHAIRMAN, ABU DHABI PORTS
BOARD MEMBER, TAQA
BOARD MEMBER, EMIRATES WATER AND ELECTRICITY
COMPANY (EWEC)

CHAIRMAN, AL DAHRA BAYWA AGRICULTURE LLC
BOARD MEMBER & MANAGING DIRECTOR, AL DAHRA FOOD
INDIA LIMITED
BOARD MEMBER, AL DAHRA FOOD SP LLC
BOARD MEMBER, AL DAHRA FOOD INDUSTRIES LLC
BOARD MEMBER, AL DAHRA AGRICULTURAL COMPANY EGYPT
BOARD MEMBER, NAVIGATOR AGRICULTURAL INVESTMENT CO
BOARD MEMBER, AGILITY ABU DHABI GROUP

VICE CHAIRMAN, ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK
CHAIRMAN, ABU DHABI NATIONAL TAKAFUL CO. PSC
BOARD MEMBER, ABU DHABI SECURITY LLC

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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GIL ADOTEVI
Member

GIANLUCA FABBRI
Member

SAIFUDDIN RUPAWALA
Member

HE KHALAF AL HAMMADI
Member

Non-Executive, Independent
Director since: April 2020

Non-Executive, Independent
Director since: April 2020

Non-Executive, Independent
Director since: April 2020

Non-Executive, Independent
Director since: April 2020

Experience:
Mr. Gil Adotevi is Investment Director for Food and Agri
sector at ADQ, and brings with him expertise in managing
a portfolio of investments within the food and agriculture
sectors of large asset management and investment
corporations.

Experience:
He is Group Chief Financial Officer of Al Dahra and brings
with him expertise in the agribusiness managing large
finance teams and partnering with stakeholders including
governments, banks, suppliers, shareholders, and
customers.

Experience:
Currently serves as Chief Executive Officer of LuLu Group
International, where he spearheads global expansion efforts
within the consumer goods retail sector.

Experience:
He brings over 25 years of executive management
experience in government and semi-government sectors,
and in his current position as Director General of Abu Dhabi
Retirement Pensions Benefits Fund.

Other Board memberships:

Other Board memberships:

Other Board memberships:

Other Board memberships:

BOARD MEMBER, ORIONGREEN LTD
BOARD MEMBER, ARSAMAR / ANDROMEDA (SPAIN CO.)

BOARD MEMBER, AL DAHRA BAYWA AGRICULTURE LLC (UAE)
BOARD MEMBER, AL DAHRA FOOD SP LLC (UAE)
BOARD MEMBER, AL DAHRA FOOD INDUSTRIES SP LLC (UAE)
BOARD MEMBER, AL DAHRA BARLETT LLC (UAE)
BOARD MEMBER, AL DAHRA SERBIA D.O.O (SERBIA)
BOARD MEMBER, AL DAHRA AGRICULTURE SPAIN SL (SPAIN)
BOARD MEMBER, AL DAHRA EUROPE SRL (ITALY)
BOARD MEMBER, FAGAVI CANARIAS (CANARIES)
BOARD MEMBER, AL DAHRA AGRICULTURE COMPANY USA INC (USA)
BOARD MEMBER, AL DAHRA ACX INC. (USA)
BOARD MEMBER, ACX INTERMODAL INC. (USA)
BOARD MEMBER, HUALAPAI VALLEY FARMS LLC (USA)
BOARD MEMBER, AL DAHRA ACX MEXICO S. DE R.L. DE C.V. (MEXICO)
BOARD MEMBER, AL DAHRA ACX MEXICO SERVICIOS (MEXICO)
BOARD MEMBER, AL DAHRA FOOD INDIA LTD (UAE)

BOARD MEMBER, LULU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BOARD MEMBER, SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE,
EXECUTIVE COUNCIL, ABU DHABI
BOARD MEMBER, DAMAN
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Board
Committee
Membership

Khalifa Sultan Al
Suwaidi– Chairman

16 Apr - 31 Dec

-

Salmeen Obaid Alameri –
Vice-Chairman

16 Apr - 31 Dec

Gil Adotevi

16 Apr - 31 Dec

Present Board Member

Board
Director’s
fees in AED

Number of
Board
meetings
attended

Committee
Members’
fees in AED

Number of
Committee
meetings
attended

356,165

6

-

-

05-Mar

16-Apr

06-May

28-Jul

28-Oct

8-Nov

17-Dec

28-Dec

Khalifa Sultan Al Suwaidi – Chairman		

P

P

P

P

R

P

R

Salmeen Obaid Alameri – Vice Chairman		

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

Gil Adotevi		

P

P

P

P

R

P

R

Gianluca Fabbri		 P

P

P

P

P

P

P

Saifuddin Rupawala		

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

HE Khalaf Al Hammadi		

P

P

P

P

P

P

P (By Proxy)

Khamis Buharoon Al Shamsi

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P
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Board/
Committee
Term

Board/Board Committee
Member

BOARD MEETINGS
During 2020, eight Board of Directors meetings were held.

Total Director’s fees of AED 2.33 million relating to 2020,
towards Board of Directors’, Audit, and Nomination &
Remuneration Committee Members’ fees, are to be paid
in 2021, subject to shareholder approval. No additional
allowances, salaries or fees was received by the Board
members for the year 2020.

Former Board Members								

Nomination &
Remuneration
Committee

178,083

Nomination &
Remuneration
Committee

178,083

7

6

60,000

60,000

6

6

Khamis Buharoon Al
Shamsi

1 Jan - 31 Dec

Audit Committee

250,000

8

40,000

4

Gianluca Fabbri

16 Apr - 31 Dec

Audit Committee

178,083

7

30,000

3

HE Khalaf Al Hammadi

16 Apr - 31 Dec

Nomination &
Remuneration
Committee

178,083

7

90,000

9

Eng Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi – Chairman

P							

Rashed Hamad Al Dhaheri – Vice Chairman

P							

Mohamed Saif Al Suwaidi

P 							

Salem Sultan Al Dhaheri

P							

Ali Murshed Al Marar

P							

Rashed Abdul Kareem Al Blooshi

P							

Number of Board resolutions passed

3

P
A
R

7

2

Present
Apologies sent/leave of absence was granted to members not attending the meeting(s)
Recused from attending due to their underlying position with SEENAT

2

2

2

3

6

■■ End of Board Term
■■ Board Term not started

Audit Committee
Saifuddin Rupawala

16 Apr - 31 Dec

-

178,083

7

-

-

Eng Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi
– Chairman

1 Jan - 15 Apr

-

143,835

1

-

-

Rashed Hamad Al Dhaheri
– Vice Chairman

1 Jan - 15 Apr

Audit Committee

71,917

1

10,000

1

Mohamed Saif Al Suwaidi

1 Jan - 15 Apr

Nomination &
Remuneration
Committee

71,917

1

10,000

1

Salem Sultan Al Dhaheri

1 Jan - 15 Apr

Audit Committee

71,917

1

10,000

1

Ali Murshed Al Marar

1 Jan - 15 Apr

Nomination &
Remuneration
Committee

71,917

1

10,000

1

Musallam Obaid Al Ameri

1 Jan - 9 Feb

Audit Committee

26,711

-

-

-

Rashed Abdul Kareem Al
Blooshi

9 Feb - 16 Apr

-

45,205

1

-

-

Mr. Osama Al Sheleh

1 Jan - 15 Apr

Audit Committee

-

-

10,000

1

1

1

Mr. Osama Al Sheleh was a consultant on the Audit Committee with relevant financial and accounting expertise and not a Board member.

On 25th November 2020, Agthia Group board took decision on certain urgent matters via written circular resolution
pertaining to affairs and business of the company.

BOARD EFFECTIVENESS EVALUATION
An evaluation to assess the performance of the Board as a
whole, its committees, and that of the individual directors
is conducted annually, with the aim of improving the
effectiveness of the Board, its members and committees,
and the performance of the Group. Our Board Performance
Evaluation set outs requirement for every principal
component of the effective Governance including but
not limited to skills, training, accountability, effective
communication, quality discussions, and succession
planning. Based on the individual evaluation performed by
the Board members, the Board believes that it is functioning
effectively to discharge its’ duties towards the shareholders.

AGTHIA ANNUAL REPORT 2020

DIRECTORS’ FEES AND REMUNERATION
Remuneration of the Group’s Board of Directors is
determined in accordance with the provisions of the Group’s
Articles of Association. The Directors’ fees is a fixed fee and
is not linked to Board meeting attendance. Directors’ fees of
AED 1.4 million relating to 2019, was approved in the General
Assembly held in 2020, and thereafter paid in 2020.

BOARD INDUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT
The Chairman, with the support of the Company Secretary,
is responsible for the induction of new directors and the
continuing development of directors. All directors receive
a tailored induction upon joining the Board, covering
their duties and responsibilities as directors. Directors
also receive a full briefing on all key areas of the Group’s
business, and they may request further training as they
consider necessary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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He is also the Group’s Vice President, Legal Affairs and has
the following qualifications:
Qualifications:
Bachelor of Laws (LLB)
Master of Laws (LLM)

At the General Assembly Meeting held on April 16, 2020,
the shareholders appointed Deloitte, one of the leading
international audit firms, as the external auditors for the
year 2020. Deloitte is a multinational professional services
firm headquartered in the United Kingdom. It is one of the
Big Four audit firms.
Deloitte & Touche (M.E.) had been the only external auditor
of the Company for three years, since their appointment
at the General Assembly Meeting held on April 26, 2018.
Mr. Obada Alkowatly is the Deloitte partner issuing the
Independent Auditors’ Report for three years.
Audit and non-audit related fees and costs of the services
provided by the external auditors during 2020 were AED
1,264,000.
Deloitte

AED

Total audit fees for 2020

937,000

Other Non-Audit services
(Subsidy review, Electricity Tariff
Incentive Program, ICV)

327,000

Total

1,264,000

No other services of the external auditors were utilized during 2020.

There have been no qualified opinions reported by our
external auditors on Agthia Group’s interim and annual
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December
2020. Please refer the Independent Auditors’ Report in the
Financial Statements for further details.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has established two Board Committees to
assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities. The
Committees operate in line with their respective charters
approved by the Board. The charters set out their roles,
responsibilities, scope of authority, composition, and
procedures for reporting to the Board.
AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee, appointed by the Board of
Directors, consisted of three members. Three members
were Independent Non-Executive Directors, with relevant
financial and accounting expertise.
Roles and Responsibilities
The Audit Committee maintains free and open
communication between the external auditors, internal
auditors, and senior management. The responsibilities of
the Audit Committee include:
• M
 onitoring the integrity of the financial statements of
the Group and any formal announcements relating to
the Group’s financial performance, as well as reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments that they contain.
• Reviewing the Group’s internal controls, risk management,
and compliance with the relevant regulations.
• Establishing, monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness
of the Group’s Internal Control department, systems and
processes.
• Making recommendations to the Board in relation to the
appointment, reappointment, resignation, discharge and
remuneration of the external auditor and ensuring a timely
response by the Board on the matters contained in the
external auditor’s letter.

• R
 eviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of
the audit process, taking into consideration relevant
professional and regulatory requirements.
• Developing and implementing guidelines on the engagement
of the external auditor to supply non-audit services, taking into
account relevant ethical guidance regarding the provision of
non-audit services by the external audit firm.
• Reporting to the Board on matters that in the Committee’s
opinion require action or improvement, and providing
recommendations on the necessary steps required to
achieve such improvement.
• Reviewing the whistle-blower system whereby employees
can anonymously notify their doubts on potential
abnormalities in the financial report or internal controls or
any other matter, and ensuring proper arrangements for
independent and fair investigations of such matters.
• Reviewing any related party transactions and reviewing
compliance with such rules for the conduct and approval of
such transactions.
• Determining the appointment, compensation, benefits,
performance appraisal, discipline, replacement,
reassignment, or dismissal of the Head of Internal Control
and Compliance as well as the Internal Control Department.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee, HE Khamis
Buharoon Al Shamsi, acknowledges responsibility for
discharging the Audit Committee’s mandate across the
Group including review of its work mechanism and ensuring
its effectiveness in line with the approved charter of the
Audit Committee.

During 2020, four Audit Committee meetings were held:
Present Audit Committee Members

02-Mar

23-Apr

27-Jul

26-Oct

Khamis Buharoon Al Shamsi - Chairman		

P

P

P

Gianluca Fabbri		

P

P

P

HE Khalaf Al Hammadi		

P

P

P

Former Audit Committee Members				

Rashed Hamad Al Dhaheri – Chairman

P (By Proxy)

Salem Sultan Obaid Al Dhaheri

P

Musallam Obaid Al Ameri
Osama Al Sheleh (Consultant)

P

Total fee for the year 2020 is AED 0.12 million (2019: AED 0.20 million).

P Present
A	Apologies sent/
leave of absence
was granted to
members not
attending the
meeting(s)
■■ End of
Committee Term
■■ Committee Term
not started
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• T
 o organize director’s meetings in accordance with
procedures to be agreed upon from time to time by the
Board Chair and the Board.
• Prepare notices, agendas of meetings, and supporting
reports and documentation in a timely manner.
• To attend Board meetings and undertake secretarial
responsibilities, including organizing minute-taking
responsibility at each meeting.
• In conjunction with the CEO and other senior management,
carry out instructions of the Board and give practical effect
to the Board’s decisions.
• To report to the Board with respect to all corporate
secretarial responsibilities.
• Arrange/organize shareholders’ meetings

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
The Board nominates the Group’s external auditors based
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee. The
appointment and remuneration of the external auditors is
approved by the General Assembly of Shareholders.
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COMPANY SECRETARY
The Company Secretary is the focal point for
communication with the Board of Directors and senior
management, and plays a key role in the administration of
important corporate governance matters. Our Company
Secretary, Mr. Mohammad Amro was appointed by the
Board on, 30 August 2020 and reports to the Board in
relation to secretarial responsibilities. The Company
Secretary has the following key responsibilities:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Roles and Responsibilities
The key objective of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities regarding the following:
•O
 rganizing and follow-up of the nomination procedure
related to the Board of Directors’ election and membership.
•E
 nsuring that Independent Non-Executive Directors remain
independent on a continuous basis and at all times.
•R
 eviewing the potential for conflicts of interest and
judgment, and that there are appropriate safeguards against
such conflicts.
• F ormulation and annual review of remuneration, benefits,
incentives of the CEO and senior executives, and that the
remuneration and benefits given to senior management are
reasonable and in line with the Group’s performance.

The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Salmeen Obaid Alameri, acknowledges
responsibility for discharging the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee’s mandate across the Group,
review of its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness
in line with the approved charter of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

During the year, seven Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings were held:
Present Nomination and Remuneration Committee Member

2-Mar

4-May

3-Jun

9-Aug

10-Sep

22-Sep

23-Nov

Salmeen Obaid Alameri - Chairman		

P

P

P

P

P

P

HE Khalaf Al Hammadi		

P

P

P

P

P

P

Gil Adotevi 		 P

P

P

P

P

P

CONDUCT AND VALUES COMMITTEE
The Conduct and Values Committee is appointed as a subcommittee of the Audit Committee by the Board of Directors
to assist the Audit Committee to review arrangements by
which staff of the Group may, in confidence, raise concerns
about possible improprieties including fraud, and to ensure
that a process is in place for the independent investigation
of such matters and for appropriate follow-up action.
The Committee is entrusted by the Audit Committee with
responsibilities for receiving, reviewing, assessing credibility

of allegations, and investigating allegations. The Committee
through its’ established mechanism has reviewed all such
cases or allegations reported in 2020 and reported the
conclusion of the proceedings to the Audit Committee.

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY
The Board is and shall remain responsible for the overall
governance of the Group and for those matters that are
reserved for the Board. The Board through a resolution
provided the Chairman, powers and authorities on behalf
of the Board with the right of delegation. The Chairman
under Special Power of Attorney, delegated key authorities
to the CEO – Alan Smith, the CFO – Ammar Al Ghoul and
the CHC&CSO – Mubarak Al Mansoori to be exercised
jointly by any two of them, which is valid for three years
until April 15, 2023.

•T
 o sign jointly all contracts and agreements on behalf of the
Company inside and outside of the United Arab Emirates;
•T
 o represent the Company jointly in any manufacturing and/
or distribution deals;
•T
 o represent the Company jointly before the banks for
opening and closing accounts, applying for loans and
financial facilities, and signing LCs, bank guarantees, and
other bank documents.
• To incorporate companies and branches the United Arab
Emirates or abroad and sign their articles of association jointly.

Some of the key authorities delegated by the Board are as
follows:
•T
 o jointly manage the Company and its subsidiaries’
operations;
•T
 o represent and jointly manage the Company and its
subsidiaries in all transactions and documents before the
Government;

Former Nomination and Remuneration Committee Member

The Committee members are:
• Head of Internal Control and Compliance (Chairman)
• Chief – Human Capital & CS Officer;
• Vice-President – Legal Affairs; and
• Risk & Governance Manager

In pursuance of the special powers and authorities delegated
to the CEO, CFO and CHC&CSO, they have delegated some
of their decision making and approval authorities to the
management as specified in the Authority Matrix approved
by Board. The Delegation of Authority framework and policy
is established to define the limits of authority designated
to specified positions of responsibility within the Group.
The Authority Matrix ensures efficient and effective decision
making which balances empowerment against controls.

ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

Mohamed Saif Al Suwaidi – Chairman

P

Khamis Buharoon Al Shamsi

P

Ali Murshed Al Marar

P

P Present
A	Apologies sent/leave of absence was granted to members not attending the meeting(s).

Total fee for the year 2020 is AED 0.21 million (2019: AED 0.15 million).

Leadership Team Members

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

RISK & GOVERNANCE MANAGER

■■ End of Committee Term
■■ Committee Term not started

HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT & COMPLIANCE

CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER

EVP - CATEGORY
& GROWTH

EVP - FOOD &
FEED

EVP INTERNATIONAL
BUSINESS

SVP - B2C
COMMERCIAL
UAE

CHIEF - HUMAN
CAPITAL
& CS OFFICER

COMPANY
SECRETARY AND
VP LEGAL AFFAIRS

SVP - VALUE
CHAIN

SVP - STRATEGY

SVP - MERGER &
ACQUISITION

SVP - QA, FS,
R&D

INVESTOR
RELATIONS
MANAGER
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• Consideration and putting forward for Board approval
proposals on remuneration adjustments, performance
bonus, long-term incentives etc.
• Driving the performance-based remuneration culture within
the Group through annual performance review of the Group’s
senior executives and succession planning.
• Determination of the Group’s needs for qualified staff at the
level of senior executives and the basis of selection.
• Reviewing the remuneration policy and training policy to
encourage development and growth of female employees in
the Group.
• Reporting to the Board on matters that in the Committee’s
opinion require action or improvement, and providing
recommendations.
• While it is the Committee’s responsibility to exercise
independent judgment, it does request advice from
management and third-party independent sources as
appropriate, to ensure that its decisions are fully informed
given the internal and external environment.
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is
responsible for the review of the Group’s HR framework
and compensation programs. The Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration,
allowances, and terms of service of the Group’s senior
executives to ensure they are fairly rewarded for their
individual contribution to the Group. All the three
Committee members are Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
LEADERSHIP TEAM
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ALAN SMITH
Chief Executive Officer

AMMAR AL-GHOUL
Chief Financial Officer

MUBARAK AL MANSOORI
Chief Human Capital and Corporate
Services Officer

RAMY MERDAN
Chief Operating Officer

DR. RABIH KAMLEH
Chief R&D and Quality Assurance
Officer

Alan Smith joined Agthia Group PJSC
in 2020 and as Chief Executive Officer
is responsible for the company’s
growth and development.

Ammar Al-Ghoul joined Agthia
Group PJSC in 2020 and as CFO is
responsible for strategically managing
and planning the finances of the
organisation.

Mubarak Al Mansoori joined Agthia
Group in 2016 and is currently the
Chief Human Resources and Corporate
Services Officer.

Ramy Merdan joined Agthia Group in
2017 and is the Chief Operating Officer
of the company.

Dr. Rabih Kamleh joined Agthia Group in
2013. An expert in food quality control,
safety and health, he holds over 20
years of experience as a consultant for
international agencies and firms, as well
as food establishments in the region.

Prior to his appointment as CEO, Alan
held various positions at Mondelez
International, the most recent being
Managing Director – Middle East &
Pakistan.
Alan brings over 20 years of FMCG
experience with a focus on opening
new markets and transforming
underperforming operations. He also
has strong cross-functional experience,
having driven strategic initiatives,
business turnarounds, manufacturing
build-outs and multi-country
operations as a business leader.
He holds an Executive Master's degree
in Marketing from INSEAD and a
Bachelor of Engineering (Mechanical)
degree from Manchester University.

Prior to his appointment as CFO, Ammar
was the Group CFO of MS Pharma in
Jordan, where he was responsible for
driving both organic and non-organic
growth for the company throughout the
region. He has held senior management
positions across various entities in
the GCC, including Al Fozan Holding
Company and Deloitte & Touche,
and has served on various boards,
including that of Al Fozan Holding as an
appointed member.
Ammar brings over 20 years of
experience in the finance field with
expertise in financial reporting and
planning, corporate governance,
investment management strategy,
IPO advisory and auditing. He holds
an MBA from London Business School
in the UK and a bachelor's degree
in Accounting from Al-Zaytoona
University of Jordan.

Prior to joining Agthia, Mubarak was
the Vice President of Human Capital
& Administration Support at Emirates
Steel. Earlier roles include leadership
positions at Emirates Advanced
Investments Group and Etisalat.
Mubarak brings over 18 years of
experience in Human Capital and
Corporate Services, including Talent
Management, Change Management,
Senior Talent Sourcing, Performance
Management and Leadership
Development. Over the years, he
has accumulated outstanding
proficiency in HR Strategy, Corporate
Communications, Project Management
and Business Operational Efficiency.
He holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from Zayed
University, UAE, and a bachelor's
degree in Business Administration
(Human Resources) from Eastern
Washington University, USA.

Ramy brings over 20 years of
experience in achieving revenue,
profit and business growth objectives
through strategic planning and
supply chain management. His
expertise includes driving company
performance across multiple markets
and industries, as well as managing
P&Ls for business divisions.
Prior to joining Agthia, Ramy was the
Managing Director of Gandour Group
in KSA, having previously served as
the company's Chief Operating Officer.
He holds a Bachelor of Accounting
degree from the University of
Alexandria in Egypt.

Prior to joining Agthia, Dr. Rabih was an
Assistant Professor in Food Science at
the American University of Beirut, where
he authored and co-authored several
papers on food safety and technology,
published in peer-reviewed journals.
His field experience includes working
as a Center Manager at the Smallholder
Livestock Rehabilitation Project –
International Fund for Agricultural
Development (UN), and as a food
science expert for various international
agencies such as WHO, ESCWA-UN,
OXFAM, EU and Mercy Corps.
Dr. Rabih holds a PhD in Biotechnology
and Food Processing from
Polytechnique de Lorraine, France. He is
a Fellow at the International College for
Nutrition (Canada) and a long-standing
member of the Institute of Food
Technologists (IFT), USA.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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MOHAMED ITANI
Executive Vice President –
International Business

DECLAN BENNETT
Executive Vice President –
Food & Feed

AHMAD T. YAHYA
Executive Vice President – Growth &
Categories (Marketing)

MUJTABA HUSSEIN
Senior Vice President – Mergers &
Acquisitions

TED THORBJORNSEN
Senior Vice President – Strategy

KHALID MANSOUR
Senior Vice President - B2C
Commercial UAE (Sales)

Mohamed Itani joined Agthia Group
in 2020 and is the Executive Vice
President of International Business.

Declan Bennett joined Agthia
Group in 2017 and is the Executive
Vice President – Food and Animal
Nutrition.

Ahmad Yahya joined Agthia Group
PJSC in December 2020 and is
currently the Executive Vice President
Growth & Categories (Marketing),
responsible for the company’s
marketing growth and development.

Mujtaba Hussein joined Agthia Group
in 2020 as Senior Vice President –
Mergers & Acquisitions, a role created
to focus on identifying and negotiating
deals and effectively integrating new
businesses into the group.

Ted Thorbjornsen joined Agthia
Group in 2016 and is the Senior Vice
President of Strategy. He brings more
than 20 years of general management
experience in high-tech, manufacturing
and professional services markets.

Khalid Mansour joined Agthia Group
in December 2020 and is the Senior
Vice President – B2C Commercial UAE
(Sales).

Prior to his appointment at Agthia,
Ahmad held various senior roles at
Kellogg’s Company, the most recent
being General Manager, GCC and CGO
MENAT. He also worked at Danone
KSA as Marketing Director and Pepsi
Canada as Marketing Manager.

Bringing a wealth of experience,
Mujtaba has a proven track record
in completing transactions. Prior to
joining Agthia, he led Investments and
Operations in the Dubai office of the
Evercare Fund.

Prior to joining Agthia, Thorbjornsen
was the Co-founder and Managing
Director of Boston Analytics, a global
consulting firm, focusing on emerging
markets for MNCs. Earlier, he was a
research scientist and senior advisor at
Telenor R&D.

A seasoned FMCG professional,
Mohamed brings over 23 years of
experience in various multinational
companies such as PepsiCo, Red
Bull, and Coca Cola. This has been
the linchpin in his fruitful career,
throughout which he has gained
international business exposure in
Africa, Eastern Europe, China, the GCC
and the wider Middle East.
Prior to joining Agthia, Mohamed
was the CEO of Ajlan Group Holding
in KSA, where he was responsible for
driving strategic projects in both food
and non-food FMCG products across
Egypt, the UAE, Tatarstan and KSA.
He holds an MBA and a Bachelor of
Business Management degree from St.
Joseph University in Beirut, Lebanon.

Declan brings over two decades of
experience in the food and beverages
industry, developing commercial
strategies and operation plans for
multinational companies.
Prior to joining Agthia, Declan was
Managing Director of Kraft Heinz
Middle East, North Africa, Turkey,
Pakistan and Indian Ocean, and
previous to that had served as
Commercial Director of Kellogg
Middle East.
Declan’s expertise includes business
development, customer insight
and market planning, and business
operations planning. He holds a
Bachelor of Business Studies degree
from the University of Limerick in
Ireland.

Ahmad brings over 25 years of FMCG
experience covering the Middle East,
North Africa and Asia, with expertise
in executing brand strategies across
multiple markets. He holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from
Lahore University of Management
Sciences.

Mujtaba’s expertise spans origination,
execution, portfolio monitoring,
turnaround management and exit
realisation across several industries.
He holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from Abraaj
Academy and a Bachelor of Economics
degree from Lahore University of
Management Sciences.

Ted is an expert in managing high
growth environments, business
contraction, restructuring,
re-engineering and crisis management.
He also has considerable experience
in conducting research and analyses
for the development of new business
opportunities for global companies.
Ted holds an MBA from Case
Western Reserve University, USA
and a bachelor's degree in Electrical
Engineering from the Norwegian
University of Science and Technology.

Khalid brings over 25 years of
experience at various multinational
companies. His previous roles
include Project Manager and Plant
Engineer at MacKay Meters, service
and distribution at PepsiCo Canada,
Distribution Manager at Weston Group,
General Manager at Basamh Trading
Co and VP Sales & Distribution at
NADEC Foods.
Khalid is a member of the Middle East
Leadership Academy (MELA) and has
received several accolades, including
the AC Neilson Award for Fastest
Growing Company in Dairy and Juice,
Saudi Arabia.
He holds a master's degree in Business
Management from Loblaw School of
Management – Toronto and a Bachelor
of Industrial Engineering degree from
Dalhousie University, Canada.
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Alan Smith was appointed as CEO of the Group on July 5,
2020.
Alan Smith
Chief Executive Officer
Date of joining: July 5, 2020
Qualifications:
Bachelor of Engineering in Mechanical Engineering (UK)
Executive Master of Business Administration (INSEAD)

Below are the details of all the Senior Executives, illustrating their appointment dates, remuneration, and bonus for 2020.

Appointment Date

Remuneration
and Allowances
paid in 2020
AED’000

Bonus for
2020
(estimate)1
AED’000

Remuneration
accrued in future
(estimate)2
AED’000

Chief Executive Officer

July 5, 2020

1,071

330

To be determined

Chief Financial Officer

Mar 17, 2020

1,360

198

To be determined

Chief Human Capital & CS Officer

June 1, 2017

2,180

302

To be determined

Executive Vice President – Food & Feed

April 1, 2019

1,598

500

To be determined

Executive Vice President – International Business

July 22, 2020

917

45

To be determined

Executive Vice President – Category & Growth

Nov 17, 2020

297

-

To be determined

Senior Vice President – B2C Commercial UAE

Nov 3, 2020

254

-

To be determined

Senior Vice President – Value Chain

May 6, 2018

1,512

145

To be determined

Senior Vice President – QA, FS, R&D

May 10, 2017

1,242

133

To be determined

Jan 6, 2016

1,346

135

To be determined

Oct 11, 2020

413

-

To be determined

Position

Senior Vice-President – Strategy
Senior Vice-President – M&A
1

Estimated 2020 bonus amount is subject to board’s approval and shareholders’ approval of the audited financial statements.

2 	The total vested value of Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTI) accrued in 2020 is AED 4.1 million. The LTI benefits for the senior executives subject to board’s
approval and are linked to long term business performance achievement over a period of three years.

INSIDER TRADING MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
The Insider Trading Management Committee is appointed by
the Board as a Management Committee to oversee and followup on insiders' trading and their holdings. The Committee is
entrusted by the Board with the following responsibilities:
• E
 nsuring that the reputation of the Group is not adversely
impacted by perceptions of trading in the Group’s securities
at inappropriate times or in an inappropriate manner by
employees of the company.
• Evaluating where the employee or third party (such as the
Group’s auditors, bankers, lawyers or other professional
advisors) may be classified as an insider who has direct or
indirect access to “inside information” which may affect
Group’s share price and/ or trading of Group’s shares.
• Prepare and maintain a special and comprehensive register
of all insiders, including Directors, Executive Management
and persons who could be considered as insiders on a
temporary basis.
• Developing, reviewing and continuously improving the
Trading in Group Shares Policy including guidelines and
procedures, and ensuring compliance with the policy and
assessing any indicative non-compliance to the policy.
• Annual review of movement in insider share holdings and
report to the Board on compliance with the policy and
regulatory requirements, highlighting any exception cases
noted.
• Effective communication with ADX and SCA regarding black out
days, temporary suspension of trading and insider trading
The above activities were adequately discharged in 2020 by
the Committee members and no exceptions were noted.
The Chairman of the Insider Trading Management Committee,
Mr. Saeed Akram - Group Vice President Corporate Finance,
acknowledges responsibility for the follow-up and supervision
system on transactions of the insiders in the Company through
discharging the Insider Trading Management Committee’s
mandate across the Group, review of its work mechanism and
ensuring its effectiveness in line with the approved charter
The Committee members are:
Position

Name

Vice President, Corporate
Finance (Chairman)

Saeed Akram

Vice President, Legal Affairs

Mohammad Amro

Risk and Governance Manager

Riya Mathew

Senior HR Director Overseas,
C&B and Policy

Aby Varghese

RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management is integral to Agthia’s strategy and
to the achievement of our long-term goals. The Board
has established a risk and control structure designed to
manage the achievement of strategic business objectives.
In doing so, we take an embedded approach that places
risk management at the core of the leadership team
agenda, which is where we believe it should be.
The Board provides oversight of the Group’s risk
management strategy and has the overall responsibility for
setting the Group’s risk appetite. Risk appetite guides the
Group in determining the nature and extent of risk it would
ordinarily accept, while executing the business model for
creating sustainable shareholder value.
The Group accepts and applies a moderate risk appetite
as it seeks a balanced management of opportunities
for sustained business growth along with focused
identification and exploitation of opportunities generated
through its business. It is not the Group’s strategy to seek
accelerated growth by embracing choices with significant
uncertainties.
The Audit Committee oversees compliance with risk
management processes and the adequacy of risk
management activities related to the Group’s operations.
In addition, the Risk Management Committee, reviews
the risk appetite and overall risk strategy, and makes
recommendations to the Board through the Audit
Committee and actions required to ensure adequate
controls/mitigating actions are in place against key
identified risks.
The Group applies a structured and robust Enterprise Risk
Management approach whereby the risk management
process is implemented in defined steps- Identify, Assess,
Prioritize, Mitigate, Monitor and Report.
The Group has established a Risk and Governance Function
separate from line management that enables and facilitate
the risk management process across the Group. Riya
Mathew is the Risk and Governance Manager for the Group
and has the following qualifications:
Qualifications:
Member, Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA)
Certification in Risk Management Assurance (CRMA)
Master of Business Administration
Bachelor of Technology
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is appointed by the Board.
The CEO is responsible to delivery sustained growth, and
must direct the Group towards the achievement of its
business objectives, as defined by the Board. The primary

role of the CEO is to define and execute the business vision,
mission, and strategy of the Group and to ensure that all
operations are managed efficiently in terms of allocating
resources appropriately and profitably.
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LEADERSHIP TEAM
The Leadership Team is composed of senior executives of
the Group responsible for the management of the business,
and meets on a regular basis. The committee members
report to the CEO. The prime role of the Leadership Team
is to review business performance, and organizational and
operational matters; set strategies/initiatives and monitor
their successful execution; and review key business KPIs,
progress on key projects etc.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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The objective of the Group’s internal control framework
is to ensure that internal controls are established; that
policies and procedures are properly documented,
maintained, and adhered to, and are incorporated by the
Group within its normal management and governance
processes.

The Group carries out the review of its internal controls
over financial reporting on an annual basis with respect to
all material financial balances whereby the Management
assesses the adequacy of design and operating
effectiveness of such internal controls over financial
reporting. This management assessment is reviewed by the
Group’s independent auditors.
Management has adopted the Internal Control – Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), 2013
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements.
Management has assessed the adequacy of design and the
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls
over financial reporting as of 31 December 2020. Based
on the assessment, Management has concluded that the
internal controls over financial reporting are adequately
designed and operating effectively with no material
weaknesses been identified.
The Group’s operating policies and procedures are
considered to be adequate and effective, while recognizing
that such a system is designed to mitigate rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The Board of
Directors acknowledges its responsibility for the Group’s
internal control framework. The Board has delegated

The objective of the ICD function is to provide independent
assurance and consulting services using a disciplined
systematic approach to improve the effectiveness of risk
management, internal control, compliance and governance
process, and the integrity of the Group’s operations. The
function is also responsible for monitoring the compliance
of the Group and its employees with the law, regulations,
and resolutions, as well as internal policies and procedures.
A Charter sets out the purpose, authority, and responsibility
of the function.
24 reports prepared by ICD are submitted to the Audit
Committee and copied to the senior management of the
Group for action. The overall internal controls environment
remains robust across the Group. During the course of
the year there were certain process level internal control
enhancements which were identified and accepted for
implementation towards continuous improvement of
internal controls across the Group. On an ongoing basis, the
Audit Committee monitors the progress that management
has made with respect to remedial actions taken on issues
and findings raised by ICD.
On 14 May 2017, Aamarjit Singh was appointed as the
Head of Internal Control and Compliance. He is also the
Compliance Officer for SCA Resolution 3 of 2020 and has
the following qualifications:
Qualifications:
Master of Business Administration, UK
Fellow Member, Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, UK
VIOLATIONS
During the year 2020, the Group was not subject to any
material fines or penalties imposed by SCA or any statutory
authority on any matter related to capital markets.
Additionally, there have been no cases of material noncompliance with any applicable rules and regulations. No
major incidents occurred in 2020.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
The Group’s approach to Corporate Social Responsibility
centres on the idea of creating shared value for all of its
stakeholders through economic, environmental and social
actions. Accordingly, the Group’s CSR program has four
pillars: Community, Workplace, Nutrition & Well-being, and
Environment & Sustainability. The Group believes that in
the heart of the shared value concept rests the ability of a
company to create private value and to transform this into
public value for society.
The total amount spent in 2020 on CSR initiatives was AED
0.77 million. Agthia Group expanded its partnership with
the Make-A-Wish Foundation® UAE to grant wishes through
the donation of proceeds from 500,000 Al Ain Water bottles
sold across retail establishments during the month of
Ramadan. Agthia was part of The "Together We Are Good"
Ma’an campaign launched to enable the community
to contribute and support the government's efforts in
combating the Corona outbreak. Other key initiatives or
sponsorships related to community support include Sheikh
Khalifa Foundation stores where all UAE nationals are
offered a similar portfolio of products at discounted prices.
The Group also promotes an active lifestyle, by encouraging
health and wellness in the various communities we serve.
The Group is also a stout believer of national talent
development. Of over 50 different nationalities in Agthia,
UAE nationals constitute the third largest and the top
one in senior management. Agthia Group’s Emiratization
percentage as at December 31, 2020 is 19.14% (excluding
blue collar and contracted workers) in United Arab Emirates
(Emiratisation% for December 2018: 20.2%; Emiratisation%
for December 2019: 19.2%).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Note 12 of Financial Statements provides details of related
party transactions.
General Holding Corporation (Senaat) (holds 59.17% of
Agthia Group PJSC Shares)
2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

Other expenses

(15)

(15)

Local sales

805

1,167

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

5,694

21,768

25,980

-

SENAAT

Al Foah Company
Al Foah

Local purchase
Local sales
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In accordance with the requirements set out in Abu Dhabi
Accountability Authority (ADAA) Resolution No (1) of 2017.
Management performs an ongoing process of identifying,
evaluating, and managing the risks faced by the Group and
establishes and maintains effective controls for the risks
identified including those over financial reporting.

responsibility for oversight of the Internal Control
Department (ICD) to the Audit Committee. The Head of
Internal Control and Compliance is appointed by the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness
of ICD function.

Emirates Iron & Steel Factory (fully owned subsidiary of
Senaat)
Emirates Iron & Steel Factory
(Emirates Steel)

Local sales

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

437

653

Dubai Cable Manufacturing Company (joint venture with
Senaat owning 50%)
Dubai Cable Manufacturing
Company (Ducab)

Local sales
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INTERNAL CONTROL
The Group’s system of internal control aims to ensure that
the Board and management are able to fulfil the Group’s
business objectives. An effective internal control framework
contributes to safeguarding the shareholders’ investment
and the Group’s assets.

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

149

197

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

●

Agthia share price movement

●

●

ADI (ADX Market index)

ADCM (Sector index (Consumer sector)


27%
8%

0%
-2%
-5%
-9%

-14%
-23%

-5%

-9%
-14%

-14%

-9%
-18%

-20%
-20%

Apr-20

May-20

-11%

-2%

5%

-6%

-12%

-17%

-17%
-17%

-12%

Jun-20

Jul-20

Aug-20

27%

-10%

30%

29%

30%

29%

-4%

-2%

Jan-20

Feb-20

Mar-20

SHAREHOLDER CATEGORY
(NUMBER OF SHARES IN
THOUSANDS)
As of December 31, 2020

83

-28%

Category

SHAREHOLDERS OWNING
5% OR MORE
As of December 31, 2020

Oct-20

Nov-20

Dec-20

Individuals

Institutional

Total

Percentage

UAE

340,373

107,938

98,861

547,172

91.2%

GCC

-

374

13,203

13,577

2.3%

Arabs

-

1,558

902

2,460

0.4%

Foreign

-

3,621

33,170

36,791

6.1%

340,373

113,490

146,137

600,000

100.0%

57%

19%

24%

100%

Percentage

MONTH END SHARE PRICE (AED)

Sep-20

Government

Total
SHARE PERFORMANCE 2020

Shareholders

No. of shares

Percentage

General Holding Company		

306,000,000

51%

Emirates International Investment Company L.L.C

30,018,746

5%

Abu Dhabi Retirement Pensions and Benefits Fund

30,000,000

5%

No. of
shareholders

No. of
shares owned

Percentage

68,871

95,441,235

16%

132

17,811,586

3%

Month

Open

High

Low

Close

Jan-20

3.30

3.35

3.30

3.30

Feb-20

3.01

3.01

3.00

3.00

Mar-20

2.50

2.55

2.50

2.54

Apr-20

3.10

3.10

3.00

3.00

May-20

2.73

2.73

2.64

2.64

Jun-20

2.75

2.83

2.75

2.83

Jul-20

2.83

2.83

2.74

2.74

Aug-20

3.02

3.10

3.01

3.09

From 500,000 to less than 5,000,000

36

53,468,027

9%

Sep-20

3.45

3.45

3.45

3.45

5,000,000 and more

10

433,279,152

72%

Oct-20

4.20

4.30

4.19

4.19

Total

69,049

600,000,000

100%

Nov-20

4.34

4.34

4.29

4.29

Dec-20

4.21

4.26

4.21

4.25

DISTRIBUTION OF
SHAREHOLDERS
ACCORDING TO THE SIZE
OF OWNERSHIP
As of December 31, 2020

AGTHIA ANNUAL REPORT 2020

SHARE MOVEMENT VERSUS ADI AND ADCM INDEX 2020
Base: January 1, 2020

Share ownership

Less than 50,000
From 50,000 to less than 500,000
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Sahar Srour is the Investor Relations Manager for the Group
and has the following qualifications:
Qualifications
Chartered Financial Analyst
Bachelor of Business Administration
Shareholders and investors can utilise the following
channels to reach Agthia’s investors relations team:
Phone: +971 2 596 0672
Email: ir@agthia.com

• M
 r. Rashed Abdul Kareem Al Blooshi was appointed Board
member due to resignation of Mr. Musallam Obaid Al Ameri
on 9th Feb 2020
• Changes to Articles of Association of the Company was
approved
• New Board Members were elected on 16th April 2020
• Acquisition of Al Foah Company was approved on 29th Nov
2020
• Approved increase of issued share capital from AED 600
million to AED 720 million, subject to SCA approval, on 29th
Nov 2020
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS IN 2020
BUILDING UP CAPABLE NEW MANAGEMENT
With the ongoing focus on step changing the capability
and profile of the leadership team to strengthen the
vibrant agenda of our Board, very bold steps have
already been taken to re-set the base for future success.
The appointments of a new CEO, CFO and head of the
International Business in the first half of 2020 is further
complemented by the appointments of:
• E
 VP Category and Growth, in line with the commitment to
drive focus behind marketing and the growth of our core
categories, both in the UAE and International Markets.
• SVP Merger and Acquisition to ensure there is correct focus
on driving an inorganic growth agenda for the Group.
• SVP Commercial B2C whose extensive experience in driving
Route to Market and sales and distribution excellence would
be of optimal addition to drive the Division

NEW PROJECTS UNDERTAKEN OR UNDER-DEVELOPMENT
IN 2020
ACQUISITION OF AL FOAH COMPANY IN UAE
Agthia Group on 6th Jan 2021 announced the successful
completion of its strategic combination with Al Foah, a
date processing and packaging company based in Abu
Dhabi. With the integration of Al Foah into Agthia as a
strategic business unit, Agthia has instantly become the
domestic market leader in four essential food and beverage
categories: water, dates, flour, and animal feed, in addition
to having a diversified international exposure within the
date category. The transaction — which was first proposed
by General Holding Corporation (Senaat) to the Agthia
Board of Directors in October 2020 and received approval
from Agthia’s shareholders in November 2020 — saw Senaat
transfer Al Foah’s business, excluding its organic date farm
in Al Ain, to Agthia in exchange for 120 million new shares
through the issuance of a convertible instrument. As a
result, Senaat — which is part of ADQ — now owns 59.17 per
cent of the entire issued share capital of Agthia, up from the
51 per cent it owned before the deal.

ACQUISITION OF NABIL FOODS IN JORDAN
Agthia Group is in the process of acquiring of a majority
stake in Nabil Foods, regional producers of frozen and
chilled processed protein products distributed in more
than 20 local and international markets. Nabil Foods has a
processing capacity of 43,000 tons per year and a range of
over 600 individual product lines. The transaction is subject
to obtaining certain regulatory and shareholders’ approvals
and executing transaction documents. The acquisition
would represent
Agthia’s first entry into processed protein through a
well-established brand with a successful track record of
over 75 years, placing Agthia at the forefront of a fastgrowing industry. Through Nabil Foods, Agthia would have
immediate access to new revenue streams as well as the
opportunity to expand its product offering into the regional
frozen and chilled processed meat sector.

ACQUISITION OF INDUSTRIAL BAKERY IN KUWAIT
Agthia Group completed its 100% share capital acquisition
of Al Faysal Bakery and Sweets, one of Kuwait's leading
industrial bakeries. Al Faysal Bakery and Sweets is a
household name in Kuwait, which has been in the market
since 1991 with a diverse portfolio of premium products
available at all retail food outlets. The company produces
fatayers, croissants, mini pizzas, and new product
categories such as cupcakes, puff, and rusks. Completing
the deal strengthens the Agthia Group's regional footprint
and expands its portfolio within consumer products. The
acquisition quadruples the Group's business in Kuwait,
which includes the joint venture Al Rammah National
for General Trading and Contracting Company WLL that
produces Al Ain Water.

Khalifa Sultan Al Suwaidi
Board Chairman
March 8, 2021

Khamis Buharoon
Al Shamsi
Audit Committee
Chairman
March 8, 2021

Salmeen Obaid Alameri
Nomination and
Remuneration Committee
Chairman
March 8, 2021

Aamarjit Singh
Head of Internal Control
and Compliance
March 8, 2021
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• Q
 uarterly conference calls on financial results with
investment community;
• R
 esponding to enquiries from shareholders through the
Group’s investor relations function;
• M
 eetings between investors, analysts, and senior
management;
• R
 egular investor roadshows and conferences organized by
investment community; and
• A
 section dedicated to investors on the Group’s website,
which comprises of annual reports, quarterly results,
corporate governance report, analyst coverage, investor
presentations, share price and dividend information (http://
www.agthia.com/en-us/Investor-home)
• O
 ur mobile application ‘Agthia IR’ is available for download
on Apple Store or Google Play

RESOLUTIONS PASSED IN GENERAL ASSEMBLY
Three General Assembly Meetings were held in 2020. The
below special resolutions were passed at the General
Assembly, following which all the resolutions were
implemented.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS
The Board is committed to effective communication
between the Group and its shareholders. The Group
regularly announces its results to SCA, ADX and
shareholders by way of interim management statements,
quarterly results, and the annual report and annual
financial statements. Significant matters relating to share
trading or business development are disclosed to SCA,
ADX and general public by way of market disclosures and
announcements in accordance with the related provisions
of applicable laws and regulations, in addition to press
releases and postings on the Group’s website. The annual
investor relations program of the Group includes:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

Additionally, a strategic review exercise to our books
took place in the third quarter of 2020 which resulted in a
significant one-time negative impact on our bottom-line in
the ultimate aim of improving the quality of earnings and
positioning the Group for long-term sustainable growth.

Fiscal year 2020 was an exceptional year upon which the
Company experienced transformational changes across
various business aspects. On one side, as we came across
unprecedented business environment imposed by COVID19 pandemic, we showcased our agility and resilience. This
was evidenced by our swift response to ensure product
availability while preserving the safety of our employees.
On the other hand, in support of our growth agenda, we
underwent major changes including the appointment of
a new board, CEO and new top team additions. The focus
of the new leadership team on delivering on our growth
strategy was translated into several successful milestones
summarized below:

Agri-business revenues stood at AED 935 million,
representing 4.9 percent y-o-y growth. Flour segment
outperformance continued in 2020, recording 11 percent
y-o-y top-line growth on robust escalation in each of
domestic and export sales. On the other hand, Animal
Feed sales of AED 474 million, were flat versus last year
despite a drop in local demand amid new controls to restrict
commercial farms from trading subsidized animal feed in
the open market.

•A
 cquiring Al Foah Company LLC, the world’s largest date
processing and packaging company, to (i) diversify the
breadth of our product offerings, (ii) enhance our competitive
access to new markets and (iii) allow for cost and revenue
synergies from integration of the combined platform
enabling the expansion of footprint in value-added retail
products and cross-market distribution.
•A
 cquiring Al Faysal Bakery & Sweets, one of the prominent
bakery players in Kuwait, to (i) upscale our operations in the
Kuwaiti market, (ii) take advantage of distribution synergies
and (iii) optimize costs through back-end integration.
•O
 fficially signing a UAE distribution partnership agreement
with VOSS of Norway AS: As a premium lifestyle water brand,
VOSS marks our long-term commitment to (i) excellence as
we tap into the premium water segment and (ii) sustainability
given it is 100 percent recyclable glass and High-Grade (BPA
Free) plastic (PET) bottle.

On the financial side, Group revenues stood at AED 2.06
billion in 2020, up 1.1 percent versus last year despite
headwinds. Net revenue contribution by the consumerbusiness – Water & Beverage and Food – was 55 percent
whereas the agri-business – Flour and Animal Feed –
generated the remaining 45 percent of the Group’s top-line.

Water & Beverage revenues reached AED 799 million. Our
5-gallon business in the UAE increased its revenues by 7.8
percent on higher demand from homes overcompensating
hiccups in corporate channel. On the other hand, the bottled
water category recorded a descent in volume on lower
consumption during the year from restrained tourism and
COVID-19 impact on the food service channel (down 34
percent y-o-y, equivalent to AED 48 million lost sales). In
the retail channel, Agthia’s water portfolio – Al Ain Water, Al
Bayan and Alpin continues to preserve market leadership
at respective 27 and 24 percent volume and value shares
despite the fact that the overall market size of bottled water
in the UAE declined by 10.9 percent in 2020 versus last year1.
Kuwaiti operations registered 31.5 percent y-o-y growth as we
successfully expanded our market share. KSA sales however
were largely hit by the movement restrictions specifically in
H1 2020 while reflecting on our adopted strategy of improving
quality of credit sales. Nevertheless, as part of our continuous
efforts to place KSA operations back on track, we have
secured promising distribution contracts with key clients
besides hiring Head of Finance and Head of Sales to run the
business in line with our expansion strategy in the Kingdom.

Food segment – Tomato Paste & Frozen Vegetables, Dairy,
Bakery and Trading items – recorded AED 327 million
in revenues, equivalent to 32 percent y-o-y growth.
Remarkable growth trajectory reflected our proactive
adaption to changing consumer habits of increased
at-home consumption & e-commerce orders. Under our
Community Support Division (CSD), trading items recorded
26 percent y-o-y growth in its top-line. Tomato Paste &
Frozen Vegetables revenues in both UAE and Egypt were up
41 percent on higher demand in response to COVID-19. Our
Bakery business tripled in 2020 as we stepped in to support
increased demand for essential foods during the pandemic
outbreak. Meanwhile, in Dairy we managed to reduce
incurred losses despite muted top-line growth.
Group net profit2 for the year came in at AED 34.5 million.
Normalized net profit of AED 117 million excludes the
aggregate AED 82 million one-offs recorded in 9M’203 post
the strategic review exercise to improve the quality of
earnings in the third quarter. Lower bottom-line versus last
year resulted from the unfavorable sales mix and the extra
costs borne to guarantee business continuity specifically in
H1. The shortfall however was reduced by the cost savings
initiatives across our value chain and enhanced agribusiness margins.
Earnings per share (EPS) equates to AED 0.057 for each of
the 600 million shares outstanding as of 31 December 2020.
Total group assets reached AED 3.1 billion, increasing
marginally over last year on higher cash balance. Cash
accumulated from operating activities of AED 301 million
were up 5 percent versus last year on enhanced working
capital management. Cash and bank balances amounted
to AED 776 million. Group shareholders’ equity came in at
AED 1.9 billion for the period.

1
2
3

Dividend: The Board of Directors is pleased to recommend
16.5% cash dividend for the year 2020 equivalent to AED
0.165/share.
Code of Corporate Governance: The Board of Directors
and management of the Company are committed to
the principles of good governance. A full report of the
Company’s Corporate Governance activities, endorsed by
the Board, has been provided in the Corporate Governance
section of the annual report.
Financial Reporting Framework: The Directors of Agthia
Group PJSC, to the best of their knowledge, believe that:
•T
 he consolidated financial statements, prepared by the
management of the Company, fairly present its state of
affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows, and change in
equity,
•T
 he Company has maintained proper books of accounts,
• I nternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as
applicable, have been followed in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements,
•T
 he system of internal control is sound in design and has
been effectively implemented and monitored,
•T
 here is no doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

Khalifa Sultan Al Suwaidi
Chairman
08 March 2021

AC Nielsen retail audit December 2020 submission
Attributable to shareholders
Details disclosed in the published financial statements for the period ending Sept 2020
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Dear Shareholders,
On behalf of the Board of Directors,
I am pleased to present our annual
report and consolidated financial
statements of Agthia Group PJSC
(“Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“Group”) for the period ended 31st
December 2020.
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FINANCIAL
S TAT E M E N TS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs).
BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the other ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in the United Arab Emirates,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
KEY AUDIT MATTERS
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Carrying value of goodwill
Refer to note 3 and note 7 of the consolidated financial
statements.
As of 31 December 2020, the carrying value of goodwill
amounted to AED 275.9 million, or 8.79% of total assets, as
disclosed in Note 7.
In accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets, an
entity is required to test goodwill acquired in a business
combination for impairment at least annually irrespective
of whether there is any indication of impairment.
Goodwill is monitored by management at the level of
cash-generating units (“CGUs”). Management carried
out an impairment exercise as at 31 December 2020 in
respect of goodwill allocated to each CGU by determining
a recoverable amount based on value-in-use derived from
a discounted cash flow model, which was based on the
most recent formal business plan prepared by the Group’s
management and included the effects of the Covid-19
global pandemic.
An impairment is recognized on the consolidated statement
of financial position when the recoverable amount is
less than the net carrying amount in accordance with IAS
36, as described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. The determination of the recoverable amount is
mainly based on discounted future cash flows.
We considered the impairment of goodwill to be a key
audit matter, given the method for determining the
recoverable amount and the significance of the account
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the recoverable amounts are based on the use of
important assumptions, estimates or assessments made by
management, in particular future cash flow projections, the
estimate of the discount rates and long-term growth rates.

We have familiarized ourselves with the process
implemented by the Group to determine the recoverable
amount of goodwill regrouped in Cash-Generating Units
(CGU). Our work consisted of:
(i) 	Evaluating the design and implementation of controls
over the Group’s testing of goodwill for impairment
(ii)	assessing the principles and methods used for
determining the recoverable amounts of the CGU to which
the goodwill is allocated and assessing that the methods
used are in accordance with requirement of IAS 36;
(iii)	reconciling the net carrying amount of the goodwill
allocated to the CGU tested with the Group’s accounting
records;
(iv)	engaging our valuation specialist to assess the discount
rate applied by benchmarking against independent data;
(v)	substantiating by interviews with management the key
assumptions on which budget estimates underlying
the cash flows used in the valuation models are based,
including those which have been impacted by the
Covid-19 global pandemic. For this purpose, we have
also compared the estimates of cash flow projections of
previous periods with actual corresponding results, to
assess the pertinence and reliability of the process for
making forecasts;
(vi)	substantiating the results of sensitivity analyses carried
out by management by comparing them to those realized
by us;
(vii)	verifying the arithmetical accuracy of the valuations used
by the Group.
We have also assessed of the disclosures provided in Note
7 to the consolidated financial statements against the
requirements of IFRSs.

OTHER INFORMATION
The Board of Directors’ and Management are responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises
the Directors’ Report, which we obtained prior to the date
of this auditor’s report, and the Annual Report 2020, which
will be made available to us after the auditor’s report date.
The other information does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance or conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
When we will read the Annual Report 2020, if we conclude
that there is a material misstatement therein, we will be
required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance and consider whether a reportable irregularity
exists in terms of the auditing standards, which must be
reported.
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OPINION
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Agthia Group PJSC (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Key audit matter
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Agthia Group PJSC

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Those Charged with Governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISA’s, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
• I dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risk, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than the one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law and regulations preclude public disclosure

about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS
As required by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, we
report for the year ended 31 December 2020 that:
• we have obtained all the information we considered
necessary for the purposes of our audit;
• the consolidated financial statements have been prepared
and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable
provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015;
• the Group has maintained proper books of account;
• the financial information included in the Directors’ report is
consistent with the books of account of the Group;
• as disclosed in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has not purchased or invested in any
shares during the financial year ended 31 December 2020;
• Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group
discloses social contributions made during the financial
year ended 31 December 2020;
• note 12 to the consolidated financial statements discloses
the material related party transactions and balances, and
the terms under which they were conducted; and
• based on the information that has been made available
to us, nothing has come to our attention which causes
us to believe that the Company has contravened during
the financial year ended 31 December 2020 any of the
applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015
or of its Articles of Association which would materially affect
its activities or its financial position as at 31 December 2020.
Further, as required by the Resolution of the Chairman
of the Abu Dhabi Accountability Authority No. (1) of 2017
pertaining to Auditing the Financial Statements of Subject
Entities, we report that based on the procedures performed
and information provided to us, nothing has come to our
attention that causes us to believe that the Group has
not complied, in all material respects, with any of the
provisions of the following laws, regulations and circulars as
applicable, which would materially affect its activities or the
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2020:
• law of establishment; and
• relevant provisions of the applicable laws, resolutions and
circulars organising the Group’s operations.

Deloitte & Touche (M.E.)
Obada Alkowatly
Registration No. 1056
8 March 2021
Abu Dhabi
United Arab Emirates
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal
control.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represents the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the applicable provisions of the articles of
association of the Company and the UAE Federal Law No.
(2) of 2015, and for such internal control as management
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS

Notes

Consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2020
2020
AED’000

ASSETS			
Non-current assets			
Right-of-use assets
5
73,087
75,538
Property, plant and equipment
6
1,049,990
1,101,670
Advances for property, plant and equipment		
2,849
Goodwill
7
275,933
275,933
Intangible assets
8
79,510
82,908
Total non-current assets		
1,478,520
1,538,898

Total current assets		
1,662,151
1,582,338
Total assets		
3,140,671
3,121,236
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			
Equity			
Share capital
18
600,000
600,000
Legal reserve
19
205,659
202,212
Translation reserve		
(64,254)
(57,475)
Retained earnings		
1,157,104
1,216,448
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company		
1,898,509
1,961,185
Non-controlling interests		
29,662
28,535
Total equity		
1,928,171
1,989,720
Non-current liabilities			
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits
14
81,225
80,458
Bank borrowings
15
237,488
8,115
Lease liabilities
16
53,254
57,098
Total non-current liabilities		
371,967
145,671
Current liabilities			
Bank borrowings
15
298,558
513,437
Lease liabilities
16
18,979
16,932
Trade and other payables
17
518,101
446,191
Due to a related party
12
4,895
9,285
Total current liabilities		
840,533
985,845
Total liabilities		
1,212,500
1,131,516
Total equity and liabilities		
3,140,671
3,121,236

To the best of our knowledge, the consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial condition,
financial performance and cash flows of the Group as of, and for, the years presented therein. These consolidated financial
statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 8 March 2021 and signed on its behalf:
Alan Smith
Chief Executive Officer		

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Ammar Al Ghoul
Chief Financial Officer

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

Revenue 		
Cost of sales
21

2,061,216
(1,420,616)

2,039,263
(1,382,294)

640,600
656,969
Gross profit		
Selling and distribution expenses
22
(357,014)
(358,018)
General and administrative expenses
23
(234,140)
(168,491)
Research and development costs
24
(7,447)
(6,931)
Other (expense) / income
25
(9,226)
9,753

32,773
133,282
Operating profit		
Finance income
26
21,584
21,017
Finance expense
27
(17,353)
(22,221)
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Current assets			
Inventories
9
346,014
335,900
Trade and other receivables
10
527,769
580,307
Government compensation receivable
11
12,451
27,782
Due from related parties
12
408
1,115
Cash and bank balances
13
775,509
637,234

Khalifa Sultan Al Suwaidi
Chairman		

Notes

2019
AED’000
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Consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020

Profit before tax and zakat		
37,004
132,078
Income tax and zakat (expense) / credit
28
(1,483)
3,924

35,521
136,002
Profit for the year		
Attributable to:			
Owners of the Company		
34,471
137,026
Non-controlling interests		
1,050
(1,024)

		
35,521
136,002
Basic and diluted earnings per share (AED)

29

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

0.057

0.228

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS

2020
AED’000

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2020
2019
AED’000

Profit for the year		
35,521
136,002
Other comprehensive loss:		
Item that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss		
Foreign currency translation difference on foreign operations		
(6,889)
(1,683)
Item that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss		
Re-measurement of employees’ of end of service benefits		
(181)
(6,319)

Balance at 1
January 2019
Transfer to retained
earnings

Attributable
to the
NonRetained owners of the controlling
Company
earnings
interests
AED’000
AED’000
AED’000

Share
capital
AED’000

Legal
reserve
AED’000

Translation
reserve
AED’000

Other
reserve
AED’000

600,000

188,509

(55,815)

(3,943)

1,193,326

1,922,077

29,643

1,951,720

-

-

-

3,943

(3,943)

-

-

-

Total
AED’000

Profit/(loss) for
the year
137,026
137,026
(1,024)
136,002
Total comprehensive income for the year 		
28,451
128,000
Other comprehensive
loss for the year:								
Attributable to:		
Owners of the Company		
27,324
129,108
Foreign currency
Non-controlling interests		
1,127
(1,108)
translation difference
on foreign operations
(1,660)
(1,660)
(23)
(1,683)
		
28,451
128,000
Re-measurement
of employee’s end
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
of service benefits
(6,258)
(6,258)
(61)
(6,319)
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Other comprehensive loss		
(7,070)
(8,002)

Balance at 31
December 2019

-

-

(1,660)

-

130,768

129,108

(1,108)

128,000

-

-

-

-

(90,000)

(90,000)

-

(90,000)

-

13,703

-

-

(13,703)

-

-

-

600,000

202,212

(57,475)

-

1,216,448

1,961,185

28,535

1,989,720

Profit for the year
34,471
34,471
1,050
35,521
Other comprehensive
(loss)/ income for the year:								
Foreign currency
translation difference
on foreign operations
(6,779)
(6,779)
(110)
(6,889)
Re-measurement
of employees’ end
of service benefits
(368)
(368)
187
(181)
Total comprehensive
(loss)/ income for the year
Dividend for the year 2019
(see note 20)
Transfer to legal reserve
Balance at 31
December 2020

-

-

(6,779)

-

34,103

27,324

1,127

28,451

-

3,447

-

-

(90,000)
(3,447)

(90,000)
-

-

(90,000)
-

600,000

205,659

(64,254)

-

1,157,104

1,898,509

29,662

1,928,171

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Total comprehensive
(loss)/ income for the year
Dividend for the year
2018 (see note 20)
Transfer to legal
reserve
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes

2020
AED’000

136,002
106,914
19,722
2,471
(19,691)
20,496
11,686
28,488
(78)
7,582
(3,924)
4,904
3,169
1,984

1
GENERAL INFORMATION
Agthia Group PJSC (“the Company”) was incorporated as
a Public Joint Stock Company pursuant to the Ministerial
Resolution No. 324 for 2004 in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi.
General Holding Corporation PJSC (SENAAT) owns 51%
of the Company’s shares. Pursuant to Law No (02) of
2018 and executive Council Resolution No. (33) of 2020,
SENAAT became wholly owned by Abu Dhabi Development
Holding Company PJSC (ADQ) which is wholly owned by the
Government of Abu Dhabi.

believes that the Covid-19 pandemic has had no material
effects on the Group reported consolidated financial
results for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group
management continues to monitor the situation closely.
The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) are to establish, invest,
trade and operate companies and businesses that are
involved in the food and beverage sector.

In response to the spread of the Covid-19 where the
Group operates and its resulting disruptions to the social
and economic activities in those markets, the Group
management has proactively assessed its impacts on its
operations and has taken a series of preventive measures,
		
258,864
319,725
including the creation of a contingency plan, to ensure the
Movements in working capital:			
Increase in inventories		
(18,304)
(2,759)
health and safety of its employees, customers, consumers
Increase in trade and other receivables		
(8,937)
(69,479)
and wider community as well as to ensure the continuity of
Decrease / (increase) in due from related parties		
707
(921)
supply of its products throughout its markets . The Group
Decrease in government compensation receivable		
15,331
9,945
business operations currently remain largely unaffected as
(Decrease) / increase in due to a related party		
(4,390)
6,677
the food and beverage industry in general is exempted from
Increase in trade and other payables		
73,388
36,628
various bans and constraints imposed by various regulatory
Cash generated from operations		
316,659
299,816
authorities. Based on these factors, the Group management
Payment of employees’ end of service benefits
14
(12,017)
(11,775)
Income tax and zakat paid		
(865)
(687)
Net cash generated from operating activities		
303,777
287,354
Cash flows from investing activities			
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
6
(71,083)
(106,468)
Investment in fixed deposits		
(595,043)
(520,131)
Proceeds from matured deposits		
561,591
423,602
Interest received		
20,145
17,144
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment		
5,720
1,719
Net cash used in investing activities		
(78,670)
(184,134)
Cash flows from financing activities			
Dividend paid
20
(90,000)
(90,000)
Proceeds from a long term borrowing		
254,349
Repayments of a long term borrowing		
(13,009)
(4,097)
Repayments of short term borrowings, net		
(205,031)
(2,544)
Repayments of principal amount of lease liabilities		
(28,313)
(24,400)
Interest paid
15
(14,692)
(21,226)
Net cash used in financing activities		
(96,696)
(142,267)
Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		
128,411
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes		
(1,773)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January
13
28,833
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December

13

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

155,471

(39,047)
365
67,515
28,833

Name of the subsidiary

Place of incorporation
and operation

The registered office of the Company is at Al Reem Island,
Sky Towers, 17th Floor, P.O. Box 37725, Abu Dhabi, United
Arab Emirates.
The Group has not purchased or invested in any shares
during the financial year ended 31 December 2020.
The Group made social contributions amounting to AED 768
thousand during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
AED 1,073 thousand).
The principal activities, country of incorporation and
operation, and ownership interest of the Company in its
subsidiaries are set out below:

Share of equity (%)
2020
2019

Principal activities

Grand Mills Company PJSC

UAE

100

100

Al Ain Food and Beverages PJSC

UAE

100

100	Production and sale of bottled water, flavored
water, juices, yogurt, tomato paste, frozen vegetables, frozen baked products and trading products.

Agthia Group Egypt LLC

Egypt

100

100	Processing and sale of tomato paste, chilli paste,
fruit concentrate and frozen vegetables.

Al Manal Purification and Bottling of
Mineral Water LLC

Oman

100

100

Production, bottling and sale of bottled water.

Agthia Grup Icecek ve Dagitim Sanayi
ve Ticaret Limited Sirketi

Turkey

100

100

Production, bottling and sale of bottled water.

Al Bayan Purification and Potable Water LLC

UAE

100

100

Production, bottling and sale of bottled water.

Shaklan Plastic Manufacturing Co. LLC

UAE

100

100

Production of plastic bottles and containers.

Delta Alagthia for Manufacturing
Company Limited

KSA

100

100

Production, bottling and sale of bottled water.

Kuwait

50

50

Production, bottling and sale of bottled water.

UAE

51

51

Import and wholesale of fodder.

Al Rammah National for General Trading
and Contracting Company WLL
Gulf National Forage Company LLC

Production and sale of flour and animal feed.
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Cash flows from operating activities			
Profit for the year 		
35,521
Adjustments for:			
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
6
107,999
Amortisation of right-of-use assets
5
25,786
Amortisation of intangible assets
8
2,459
Interest income
26
(19,150)
Interest expense
27
12,596
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits
14
12,633
Allowance for impairment losses of trade receivables, net
10
60,480
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
25
(442)
Net change on derivative financial asset
26
Income tax and zakat expenses / (credit)		
1,483
Movement in allowance for slow moving inventory, net
9
8,190
Interest expense on lease liabilities		
3,138
Property plant and equipment impairment
6
7,970
Property, plant and equipment write off
6
201

2019
AED’000
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New and revised IFRSs

Definition of Material – Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

1 January 2020

Definition of a Business – Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations

1 January 2020

The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an integrated set of activities and
assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create output. IASB also clarify that a business can exist
without including all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs. That is, the inputs
and processes applied to those inputs must have ‘the ability to contribute to the creation of
outputs’ rather than ‘the ability to create outputs’.
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

1 January 2020

1 January 2020
1 January 2020

The amendments in Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS
7) clarify that entities would continue to apply certain hedge accounting requirements assuming that the interest rate benchmark on which the hedged cash flows and cash flows from the
hedging instrument are based will not be altered as a result of interest rate benchmark reform.
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions – amendments to IFRS 16
The amendment provides lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19related rent concession is a lease modification.
The application of these revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts
reported for the current and prior years but may affect the accounting for future
transactions or arrangements.

1 January 2022

IFRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current fulfilment value and provides
a more uniform measurement and presentation approach for all insurance contracts. These
requirements are designed to achieve the goal of a consistent, principle-based accounting for
insurance contracts. IFRS 17 supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts as at January 1, 2022.
Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures (2011) relating to the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from and
investor to its associate or joint venture.

Effective date deferred
indefinitely. Adoption is
still permitted.

Amendments to IAS 1 – Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

1 January 2023

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current is based
on rights that are in existence at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification is
unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of
a liability, explain that rights are in existence if covenants are complied with at the end of the
reporting period, and introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement refers
to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or services.
The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023, with early application permitted.

Amendments regarding pre-replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The amendments to IAS 1 affect only the presentation of liabilities as current or non-current in
the statement of financial position and not the amount or timing of recognition of any asset,
liability, income or expenses, or the information disclosed about those items.

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards related IFRS 2,
IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, IAS 34, IAS 37, IAS 38, IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22,
and SIC-32 to update those pronouncements with regard to references to and quotes from the
framework or to indicate where they refer to a different version of the Conceptual Framework.
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

1 June 2020

Amendments to IFRS 3 – Reference to the Conceptual Framework
The amendments update IFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of
the 1989 Framework.
They also add to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within the scope of IAS 37, an acquirer applies IAS 37 to determine whether at the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a
result of past events. For a levy that would be within the scope of IFRIC 21 Levies, the acquirer
applies IFRIC 21 to determine whether the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay the
levy has occurred by the acquisition date.
Finally, the amendments add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise contingent assets acquired in a business combination.
The amendments are effective for business combinations for which the date of acquisition
is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
Early application is permitted if an entity also applies all other updated references (published
together with the updated Conceptual Framework) at the same time or earlier.

1 January 2022
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The new definition states that, ‘Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific reporting entity.’

New and revised IFRSs
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2.2	NEW AND AMENDED IFRSS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE AND NOT EARLY
ADOPTED
The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective.

2	APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRS)
2.1	NEW AND AMENDED IFRS APPLIED WITH NO MATERIAL EFFECT ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods beginning
on or after1 January 2020, have been adopted in these consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2	NEW AND AMENDED IFRSS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE AND NOT EARLY
ADOPTED (CONTINUED)

New and revised IFRSs

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

New and revised IFRSs

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to IAS 37 – Onerous Contracts—Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

1 January 2022

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020

1 January 2022

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate
directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract consist of both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour or materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation
of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).

The Annual Improvements include amendments to four Standards.
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

The amendments apply to contracts for which the entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations
at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. Comparatives are not restated.
Instead, the entity shall recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, as
appropriate, at the date of initial application. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with early application permitted.
Amendments to IAS 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment—Proceeds before Intended Use
The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is available for use, i.e. proceeds
while bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Consequently, an entity recognises such sales
proceeds and related costs in profit or loss. The entity measures the cost of those items in
accordance with IAS 2 Inventories.
The amendments also clarify the meaning of ‘testing whether an asset is functioning properly’.
IAS 16 now specifies this as assessing whether the technical and physical performance of the
asset is such that it is capable of being used in the production or supply of goods or services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes.
If not presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income, the financial statements
shall disclose the amounts of proceeds and cost included in profit or loss that relate to items
produced that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary activities, and which line item(s) in the
statement of comprehensive income include(s) such proceeds and cost.
The amendments are applied retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or after the beginning of the earliest period
presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
The entity shall recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as
appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with
early application permitted.

1 January 2022

AIFRS 9 Financial Instruments
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The amendment provides additional relief to a subsidiary which becomes a first-time adopter
later than its parent in respect of accounting for cumulative translation differences. As a result
of the amendment, a subsidiary that uses the exemption in IFRS 1:D16 (a) can now also elect
to measure cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations at the carrying amount
that would be included in the parent’s consolidated financial statements, based on the parent’s
date of transition to IFRS Standards, if no adjustments were made for consolidation procedures
and for the effects of the business combination in which the parent acquired the subsidiary.
A similar election is available to an associate or joint venture that uses the exemption in IFRS
1:D16(a). The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022,
with early application permitted.
1 January 2022

The amendment clarifies that in applying the ’10 per cent’ test to assess whether to derecognise a financial liability, an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the
borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on
the other’s behalf.
The amendment is applied prospectively to modifications and exchanges that occur on or after
the date the entity first applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with early
application permitted.
IFRS 16 Leases

1 January 2022

The amendment removes the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements. As
the amendment to IFRS 16 only regards an illustrative example, no effective date is stated.
IAS 41 Agriculture
The amendment removes the requirement in IAS 41 for entities to exclude cash flows for
taxation when measuring fair value. This aligns the fair value measurement in IAS 41 with the
requirements of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement to use internally consistent cash flows and
discount rates and enables preparers to determine whether to use pretax or post-tax cash flows
and discount rates for the most appropriate fair value measurement.
The amendment is applied prospectively, i.e. for fair value measurements on or after the date
an entity initially applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with early
application permitted.
Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements as and when they are applicable
and adoption of these new standards, interpretations and amendments, may have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group in the period of initial
application.
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2.2	NEW AND AMENDED IFRSS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE AND NOT EARLY
ADOPTED (CONTINUED)

1 January 2022
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
These consolidated financial statements are prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and comply with the Articles of Association
of the Company, as amended, and wherever applicable,
with the UAE Federal Law No. 2 of 2015.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
These consolidated financial statements are presented in
UAE Dirhams (AED), rounded to the nearest thousands,
which is the functional currency of the Group.
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, unless otherwise stated.
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
These consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
IFRS 10 governs the basis for consolidation where it
establishes a single control model that applies to all entities
including special purpose entities or structured entities.
The definition of control under IFRS 10 is that an investor
controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee. To meet the definition of control in IFRS 10, all
the following three criteria must be met, including:
(a) the investor has power over an investee;
(b) the investor has exposure to, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee; and
(c) the investor has the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

Non-controlling interests
NCI are measured initially at their proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date of
acquisition. Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions.
When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary,
and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former
subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.
Business combination
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost
of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets
acquired, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, together with the fair
value of any contingent consideration payable.
The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions – that is, as transactions with the owners
in their capacity as owners. Gains or losses on disposals
of non-controlling interests are also recorded in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised
income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions,
are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions
with equity accounted investees are eliminated against
the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.
SEGMENT REPORTING
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the Group’s
executive management.
An operating segment is a component of the Group that
engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s
other components. All operating segments’ operating
results are reviewed regularly by the Group’s executive
management to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and
for which financial information is available (see note 33).
FOREIGN CURRENCY
(a) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
within “finance expense”.
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss within
“finance expense”.
(b) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group
subsidiaries (none of whic h has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the Group’s functional and presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
prevailing at the date of the consolidated statement of
financial position;
(ii) income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss are translated at the rate prevailing on the date of
the transaction; and
(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of
the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the
cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for
their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they are located.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality
of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that
equipment. When parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Freehold land is not depreciated though it is subject
to impairment testing. Depreciation on other assets is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost or revalued amounts to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:
Buildings 		
Plant and equipment
Motor vehicles
Software 		
Furniture and fixtures

20-40 years
2-20 years
4-8 years
4-8 years
4-8 years
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The Federal Decree-Law No. 26 of 2020 on the amendment
of certain provisions of Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 on
Commercial Companies was issued on 27 September 2020
and shall take effect starting from 2 January 2021. The
Company shall apply and adjust their status in accordance
with the provisions thereof by no later than one year from
the date on which this Decree-Law takes effect.

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are investees that are controlled by the Group.
The Group controls the investee if it meets the control
criteria. The Group reassesses whether it has control if,
there are changes to one or more of the elements of control.
This includes circumstances in which protective rights held
become substantive and lead to the Group having power
over an investee. The financial statements of subsidiaries
are included in these consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the date that
control ceases.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Capital work in progress
The Group capitalises all costs relating to the construction of
property, plant and equipment as capital work in progress, up
to the date of completion and commissioning of the assets.
These costs are then transferred from capital work in
progress to the appropriate asset class upon completion and
commissioning, and are depreciated over their useful economic
lives from the date of such completion and commissioning.
GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
losses on goodwill are not reversed. Calculations are
performed based on the expected cash flows of the
relevant cash generating units and discounting them at
an appropriate discount rate, the determination of which
requires the exercise of judgement.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose, identified
according to operating segments.
Acquired intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially
at fair value which reflects market expectations of the
probability that future economic benefits embodied in the
asset will flow to the Group.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not
amortised but tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if the events and circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level.
The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite useful
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the useful
life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis. Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Assets that have an indefinite useful life – for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use – are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation or
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cashgenerating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
INVENTORIES
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. Cost of inventories includes expenditures incurred
in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion
cost and other costs incurred in bringing them to their
existing location and condition. In case of manufactured
inventories cost includes an appropriate share of
production overheads based on normal operating capacity.
It excludes borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash at banks, and
deposits held at call with banks with original maturities of
not more than three months adjusted for bank overdrafts
and escrow account.
In the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and bank balances include cash on hand, cash at banks,
deposits held at call with banks, and escrow bank account.
Bank overdrafts are shown within current bank borrowings.
SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
TRADE PAYABLES
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
BORROWINGS
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the period of loan.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related
service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount
expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.
Bonus and long-term incentive plans
The Group recognises the liability for bonuses and longterm incentives in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss on an accrued basis. The benefits for the management
are subject to board’s approval and are linked to business
performance.
Defined contribution plan
Monthly pension contributions are made in respect of UAE
national employees, who are covered by the Law No. 2 of
2000. The pension fund is administered by the Government
of Abu Dhabi, Department of Finance, represented by the
Abu Dhabi Retirement Pensions and Benefits Fund.
Defined benefit plan
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan
other than a defined contribution plan. The Group currently
operates an unfunded scheme for defined benefits in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the UAE
Federal Labour Law and is based on periods of cumulative
service and levels of employees' final basic salaries. The
Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their service in
the current and prior periods discounted to determine
its present value. Any unrecognised past service costs are
deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the valuation
date on US AA-rated corporate bonds, which in the absence
of a deep market in corporate bonds within the UAE is the
relevant proxy market as determined by the Group.
The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed
annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. When benefits of the plan are improved, the
portion of the increased benefit related to past service by
employees is recognised in the profit or loss on a straightline basis over the average period until the benefits become
vested. To the extent that the benefits vest immediately,
the expense is recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The Group recognises all
actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans
in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income and all expenses related to defined benefit plans
within the consolidated statement of the profit or loss.

107

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (see note 3 “impairment of non-financial assets”).
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘other income’ in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight‑line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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PROVISIONS
Provisions for claims are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation.
FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE EXPENSES
Finance income comprises interest income on call deposits
and gains on derivative financial instruments. Interest
income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective
interest method.
Finance expense comprises interest expenses on borrowings,
interest expenses on lease liabilities, and foreign exchange
results. All borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss using the effective interest method.
DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION
Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in the period in which the dividend is approved
by the Group’s shareholders.
GOVERNMENT COMPENSATION AND GRANTS
Compensation pertains to funds that compensate the
Group for selling flour and animal feed at subsidised prices
within the Emirate of Abu Dhabi and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, as a deduction from
the cost of sales, on a systematic basis in the same period in
which the sales transaction is affected.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax for overseas subsidiaries operating within
taxable jurisdiction is provided for in accordance with
the relevant income tax regulations of the countries of
incorporation. Adjustments arising from final Zakat and
Foreign income tax assessments are recorded in the period
in which such assessments are made.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the way the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
the tax authorities.
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / LIABILITIES
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference and unused tax losses arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
The Group presents earnings per share data for its shares.
Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year.
REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is measured based on the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with
customers and excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when it
transfers control of a product or service to a customer.
Sale of goods
The Group’s contracts with customers for the sale of goods
generally include one performance obligation. The Group
accounts for that revenue at the point in time when control
of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the goods.
Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers
with several considerations including a right of return and
volume rebates. Rights of return and volume rebates give
rise to variable consideration. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until
the associated uncertainty is subsequently resolved. The
application of the constraint on variable consideration
increases the amount of revenue that will be deferred.

Right of return
When a contract provides a customer with a right to return
the goods within a specified period, the consideration
received from the customer is variable because the
contract allows the customer to return the products, if any.
The Group uses the expected value method to estimate
the goods that will be returned because this method
best predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group will be entitled. The Group applies the
requirements in IFRS 15 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration to determine the amount of variable
consideration that can be included in the transaction price.
If significant, the Group presents a refund liability and an
asset for the right to recover products from a customer
separately in these consolidated statement of financial
position.
Volume rebates
The Group provides retrospective volume rebates to
selected customers and products as per the terms specified
in the contract. Rebates are offset against amounts payable
by the customer on subsequent purchases. Retrospective
volume rebates give rise to variable consideration. To
estimate the variable consideration to which it will be
entitled, the Group applied the method to each customer as
per the agreed upon rebate scheme that best predicts the
amount of variable consideration. The Group then applies
the requirements on constraining estimates of variable
consideration. Accordingly, the Group recognised contract
liabilities for the expected future rebates.
Considerations paid or payable to customers
The Group pays exclusivity fees, display fees, remodeling
fees, opening fees, and listing and other fees to certain
customers for the provision of various services. The
Group assesses whether these services are distinct when
compared to the goods sold to the customers. The distinct
or non-distinct services are then recognised as selling
and distribution expenses or netted against revenue,
respectively.
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Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required and settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

ZAKAT AND FOREIGN INCOME TAX
The Group’s operations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia is
subject to Zakat. Zakat is provided for in accordance with
General Authority of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT”) regulations.
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The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit
in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise:
• fi
 xed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives;
• variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;
• the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;
• the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise the options; and
• payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease
The lease liability is presented as a separate line item in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
(using effective interest method) and by reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

• t he lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate.
• t he lease payments change due to changes in an index or
rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments
change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which
case a revise discount rate is used).
• a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is
not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate.
The Group did not make any such adjustments during the
period presented.
The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter
period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.
If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or
the cost of the right-of-use of asset reflects that the Group
expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-ofuse asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying
asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of
the lease.
The right-of-use of assets are presented as a separate line in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a rightof-use asset is impaired and accounts for an identified
impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, plant and
equipment’ policy.
The Group as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group's net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group's net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial asset
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
financial asset within the timeframe established by the
market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value,
plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets
classified as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets classified as at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in the consolidated profit or loss.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.
Classification and measurement - Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) are measured at amortised cost.
A gain or loss on a debt investment subsequently measured
at amortised cost and not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in the consolidated statement of income when
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method.
Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL are:
• assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; or/and
• assets that are held in a business model other than held to
collect contractual cash flows or held to collect and sell; or
• assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value option.
These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment
Loss allowance for financial investments measured at
amortised costs are deducted from gross carrying amount
of assets.
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue costs or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on Group’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information.
Forward looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group’s receivables
operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core operations
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:
• a n actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;
• significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor, or the length of time or the
extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been
less than its amortised cost;
• existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;
• an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
• significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;
• an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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LEASES
The Group as lessee
The Group assesses whether contract is or contains a
lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with
respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee,
except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets.
For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)
whenever:
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Impairment (continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:
• The financial instrument has a low risk of default;
•T
 he debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term; and
•A
 dverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of ‘investment
grade’ in accordance with the globally understood definition
or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there is no
past due amounts.
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
For certain categories of financial assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio as
well as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The Group assess impairment loss on its trade and other
receivables portfolio using an expected loss measurement
basis using the simplified approach.
Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received
4
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies (see note 3);
management has made the following judgements which
have a significant effect on the amounts of the Group assets
and liabilities recognised in these consolidated financial
statements.

PROVISION FOR EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES OF TRADE
RECEIVABLES
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer channels that have similar
loss patterns (i.e. customer type and rating, and coverage by
letters of guarantees).
The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to
an increased number of defaults in the market, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.
The assessment of the correlation between historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables is within these consolidated financial statements
(see note 3 and note 10 “Financial Instruments”)
USEFUL LIVES OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Management assigns useful lives and residual values to
items of property, plant and equipment based on the
intended use of the assets and the expected economic lives
of those assets. Subsequent changes in circumstances such
as technological advances or prospective utilisation of the
assets concerned could result in the actual useful lives or
residual values differing from the initial estimates.
IMPAIRMENT OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation
is based on available data from binding sales transactions,
conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs of disposing of the
asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model.
The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next
five years and do not include restructuring activities that
the Group is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the performance of the assets

of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive
to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant
to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful
lives recognised by the Group. The key assumptions used to
determine the recoverable amount for the different CGUs,
including a sensitivity analysis, are disclosed and further
explained within these consolidated financial statements
(see notes 7 and 8).
PROVISION FOR OBSOLESCENCE ON INVENTORIES
Management reviews the movement in ageing and
movements of its inventory items to assess loss on account
of obsolescence on a regular basis. In determining whether
provision for obsolescence should be recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, management
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable
data indicating that future salability of the product and the
net realisable value for such product and expired or close to
expiry raw material and finished goods.
DETERMINING THE LEASE TERM
In determining the lease term, management considers all
facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive
whether to exercise an extension or a termination option.
Extension options (or periods after termination options) are
only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably
certain to be extended (or not terminated). Potential future
cash outflows have not been included in the lease liability
because it is not reasonably certain that the leases will be
extended (or not terminated).
DISCOUNTING OF LEASE PAYMENTS
The lease payments are discounted using the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) except for few
contracts with respect to the land and buildings, where
implicit rate in lease is used. Management has applied
judgments and estimates to determine the IBR at the
commencement of lease.
Further information about accounting estimates,
judgements and significant assumptions made in
measuring fair values are disclosed in within these
consolidated financial statements.
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Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.

Measurement of ECL
The Group employs statistical models for ECL calculations
for its trade and other receivables, government
compensation receivables, due from related parties and
cash and bank balances. ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. The parameters used in calculation
are derived from the Group’s internally developed statistical
models and other historical data and adjusted to reflect
forward-looking information.
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RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

6
Land and buildings
AED’000

Motor vehicles
AED’000

Total
AED’000

Cost			
At 1 January 2019 upon adoption of IFRS 16
8,190
24,298
32,488
Additions
36,202
26,570
62,772
At 31 December 2019
Additions
Terminations
Reclassifications
Exchange differences

44,392
6,101
(3,580)
(2,784)
(26)

50,868
21,053
(304)
2,784
(2)

95,260
27,154
(3,884)
(28)

At 31 December 2020

44,103

74,399

118,502

7,437
9,576
(38)
8

12,285
16,210
(70)
7

19,722
25,786
(108)
15

16,983

28,432

45,415

Carrying amount			
At 31 December 2020
27,120
45,967

73,087

At 31 December 2019

75,538

At 31 December 2020

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in Note 16.

36,955

38,583

Land and
buildings
AED’000

Plant and
equipment
AED’000

Furniture and
fixtures
AED’000

Motor
vehicles
AED’000

Capital work
in progress
AED’000

Total
AED’000

Cost						
At 1 January 2019
717,013
1,103,714
76,424
68,435
89,734
2,055,320
Additions
1,788
19,971
2,696
2,030
81,295
107,780
Transfers
21,324
96,111
1,846
1,702
(120,983)
Disposals
(5,632)
(18,270)
(3,443)
(27,345)
Reclassifications
43,466
(32,108)
(12,056)
698
Written off
(995)
(1,016)
(2,011)
Exchange differences
(55)
(1,164)
32
26
(616)
(1,777)
At 31 December 2019
Additions
Transfers
Disposals
Reclassifications
Written off
Exchange differences

783,536
259
8,425
(2,781)
(2,002)

1,179,897
22,633
36,616
(38,392)
266
(3,404)

50,672
666
15,570
(596)
(266)
(201)
(113)

69,448
1,196
4,128
(2,799)
(82)

48,414
49,178
(64,739)
(1,125)
(94)

2,131,967
73,932
(45,693)
(201)
(5,695)

At 31 December 2020

787,437

1,197,616

65,732

71,891

31,634

2,154,310

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment						
At 1 January 2019
229,346
611,292
60,400
48,350
Charge for the year
20,324
75,605
3,116
7,869
Disposals
(4,004)
(18,270)
(3,430)
Reclassifications
30,097
(20,026)
(10,703)
632
Exchange differences
82
(375)
17
(25)
-

949,388
106,914
(25,704)
(301)

At 31 December 2019
Charge for the year
Disposals
Reclassifications
Impairment
Exchange differences

279,849
20,266
(2,781)
(152)

662,492
76,621
(34,239)
(5,826)
7,970
(1,227)

34,560
4,598
(596)
5,826
(80)

53,396
6,514
(2,799)
(72)

-

1,030,297
107,999
(40,415)
7,970
(1,531)

At 31 December 2020

297,182

705,791

44,308

57,039

-

1,104,320

Carrying amount						
At 31 December 2020
490,255
491,825
21,424
14,852
31,634

1,049,990

At 31 December 2019

503,687

517,405

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

Acquisition of property, plant
and equipment

73,932

107,780

Decrease in advances for
property, plant and equipment

(2,849)

(1,312)

Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment in the consolidated
statement of cash flows

71,083

106,468

16,112

16,052

48,414

1,101,670

Depreciation expense during the year is charged to the
consolidated statement of profit and loss as follows:

Cost of sales (note 21)
Selling and distribution expenses
(note 22)
General and administrative expenses
(note 23)
Research and development costs
(note 24)

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

92,319

92,513

9,297

9,360

6,155

4,771

228

270

107,999

106,914
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Accumulated amortisation			
Charge for the year
7,437
12,285
19,722
At 31 December 2019
Charge for the year
Terminations
Exchange differences

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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Agri business division		
Consumer business division (UAE operations)		
Consumer business division (Turkish operations)
Consumer business division (Al Bayan operations)
Consumer business division (KSA operations)		

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

61,855
31,131
2,486
92,864
87,597

61,855
31,131
2,486
92,864
87,597

8

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Trademarks
AED’000

License
AED’000

Spring water
rights AED’000

Others
AED’000

Total
AED’000

At 1 January 2019
Amortisation
Exchange differences

54,592
(2,442)
(15)

26,521
-

4,427
(493)

383
(29)
(36)

85,923
(2,471)
(544)

At 31 December 2019
Amortisation
Exchange differences

52,135
(2,442)
(89)

26,521
-

3,934
(796)

318
(17)
(54)

82,908
(2,459)
(939)

At 31 December 2020

49,604

26,521

3,138

247

79,510

		
275,933
275,933
The recoverable amounts of Agri Business Division and Consumer Business Divisions CGUs
were based on their values in use determined by management. The carrying amounts of these
units were determined to be lower than their recoverable amounts.
Values in use were determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the continuing
use of the units. Cash flows were projected based on past experience and the five-year business
plan approved by the management and were based on the following key assumptions:

Agri
business
division

Consumer
business
division (UAE
operations)

1%
9.1%

0.3% - 3.4%
8.2%

2019

Agri
business
division

Consumer
business
division (UAE
operations)

Anticipated annual revenue growth (%)
Discount rate (%)

0%-1%
9.6%

3%-6%
8.4%

2020

Anticipated annual revenue growth (%)
Discount rate (%)

Consumer
Consumer
business business division
division (Turkey
(Al Bayan
operations)
operations)

2% - 14%
11.5%

Consumer
business
division (KSA
operations)

6% - 7.4%
8.2%

4% - 5%
7.5%

Consumer
Consumer
business business division
division (Turkey
(Al Bayan
operations)
operations)

Consumer
business
division (KSA
operations)

15%-38%
11.5%

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent the management’s assessment of future
trends in the food and beverage industry and are based on both external and internal sources.
SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
The Group has conducted an analysis of the sensitivity of the impairment test to changes in
the key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for each of the group of CGUs
to which goodwill is allocated. Management anticipates that no reasonably possible change in
any of the key assumptions above would cause the carrying value of any of the CGU including
goodwill to materially exceed its recoverable amount.

0%-6%
8.4%

For the purpose of impairment testing, values in use were
determined by discounting the future cash flows generated
from the continuing use of these units. Cash flows were
projected based on experience to build a five-year business
plan for spring water rights and license using the following
key assumptions:

9

2020

Anticipated annual
revenue growth (%)
Discount rate (%)
2019

Anticipated annual
revenue growth (%)
Discount rate (%)

Spring water rights

License

2% - 14%
11.5%

7% - 17%
8.1%

Spring water rights

License

15%-38%
11.5%

6%-27%
8.4%

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent
management’s assessment of future trends in the food
and beverage industry and are based on both external and
internal sources.

INVENTORIES
2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

Raw and packing materials
201,427
Work in progress
3,412
Finished goods
94,597
Spare parts and consumable materials 74,307
Goods in transit
4,359

181,475
3,169
105,279
67,250
2,625

378,102
(32,088)

359,798
(23,898)

Opening balance
Charge for the year
Released / written off

346,014

335,900

Closing balance

3%-5%
8.4%

Provision for slow moving inventory

The movement in the provision for slow moving inventory
during the year is as follows:
2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

23,898
23,091
(14,901)

18,994
8,892
(3,988)

32,088

23,898

117

Spring water rights is considered to have an indefinite life as
per agreement terms, while license has been acquired with
the option to renew at the end of the period at little or no
cost allowing the Group to determine that this license has
indefinite useful life. The Group is not aware of any material
legal, regulatory, contractual, competitive, economic or
other factor which could limit its useful life. Accordingly,
spring water rights and license are not amortised.
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GOODWILL
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s Cash Generating
Units (“CGUs”) where the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. The
aggregate carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each unit is as follows:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Allowance for impairment losses
Other receivables
Prepayments and advances

The movement in the allowance for impairment losses of
trade receivables during the year is as follows:

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

550,638
(116,345)

534,744
(55,865)

434,293
61,349
32,127

478,879
54,802
46,626

Opening balance
Charge for the year
Released / written off

527,769

580,307

Closing balance

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

55,865
62,066
(1,586)

27,377
29,844
(1,356)

116,345

55,865

11 GOVERNMENT COMPENSATION RECEIVABLE
Government compensation receivables pertains to subsidy
funds that compensate the Group for selling flour and
animal feed in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi.
The movement in the government compensation receivable
during the year is as follows:

Opening balance
Compensation for the year
Amounts received

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

27,782
120,440
(135,771)

37,727
121,383
(131,328)

12,451

27,782

Closing balance

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables based on the Group's
provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss experience does not show significantly
different loss pattern for different customer channels, the provision for loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished between the Group's different customer base.

119

12	BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
The Group, in the ordinary course of business, entered into a variety of transactions at agreed
terms and conditions, with companies, entities or individuals that fall within the definition of a
related party as defined in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures.
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
As at 31 December 2020

Related parties comprise major shareholders, key management personnel, Board of
Directors and their related companies.

Not due

0-90
Days

91-180
Days

181-270
Days

271-360
Days

361 days
and Above

Total

191,068

85,805

24,802

38,779

21,080

189,104

550,638

ECL %

5.38%

9.19%

15.27%

12.84%

25.47%

44.45%

21.13%

Provision (in AED' 000)

10,270

7,888

3,788

4,981

5,369

84,049

116,345

Gross receivables (in AED' 000)

As at 31 December 2019

Not due

0-90
Days

91-180
Days

181-270
Days

271-360
Days

361 days
and Above

Total

199,575

91,651

77,136

56,159

27,842

82,381

534,744

ECL %

2.2%

4.1%

13.5%

19.7%

20.8%

25.0%

10.4%

Provision (in AED' 000)

4,321

3,746

10,382

11,054

5,780

20,582

55,865

Gross receivables (in AED' 000)

The Group recognises lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) for trade receivables using the
simplified approach. To determine the expected credit losses all debtors were classified into
five categories and ECL rate for each category was determined using a provision matrix:
•
•
•
•
•

Category I
Category II
Category III
Category IV
Category V

Government			
Municipalities				
Reprocessing / food service
Retail / distributors
Others

These were adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of the
conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money, where appropriate.

A) KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION
Key management personnel compensation for the year is
as follows:

Short term benefits
Long term benefits

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

20,244
4,083

19,234
4,327

24,327

23,561

C) AMOUNTS FROM RELATED PARTIES

Dubai Cable Company (Private)
Limited - affiliated company
Emirates Iron & Steel Company LLC –
affiliated company
General Holding Corporation PJSC
(SENAAT) – parent company

The volume of related party transactions, outstanding
balances and related expenses recharged as at / for the year
are as follows:
B) AMOUNTS DUE TO A RELATED PARTY
2020
AED’000

Al Foah Company LLC –
affiliated company

4,895

2019
AED’000

9,285

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

172

147

165

220

71

748

408

1,115

D) TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Transactions with related parties during the year were as
follows:

Sales
Purchases
Expenses recharged

AGTHIA ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

27,371
5,694
(15)

2,017
21,768
(418)
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES

14	PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE
BENEFITS
2019
AED’000

2020
AED’000

Cash on hand
Current and savings accounts

2,992
177,475

1,903
73,741

Cash and bank balances

180,467

75,644

Escrow account (for dividend
distribution 2009 to 2014)
Bank overdrafts (see note 15)

(24,996)
-

(25,036)
(21,775)

Cash and cash equivalents in
the consolidated statement of
cash flows

Amounts recognised in the
consolidated statement of
financial position
Opening balance
80,458
Service cost (including interest costs) 12,633
Benefit payments
(12,017)
Exchange differences
(30)
Loss on remeasurement
181

74,228
11,686
(11,775)
6,319

155,471

28,833

81,225

80,458

Cash and bank balances
Fixed deposits

180,467
595,042

75,644
561,590

Cash and bank balances in the
consolidated statement of
financial position

775,509

637,234

Fixed deposits are for a period not more than one year and
not less than three months (2019: not more than one year
and not less than three months). Interest is earned on these
deposits at prevailing market rates, the carrying amounts of
these assets approximate to their fair value.
Escrow account represents cash at bank set aside for
payment of unclaimed dividends related to 2009 to 2014.
Equivalent amount has been recorded as liability in trade
and other payables. This restricted cash balance has not
been included in the cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of consolidated statement of cash flows.
Balances with banks are assessed to have low credit
risk of default. Accordingly, management estimates the
loss allowance on balances with banks at the end of
the reporting period to an amount equal to 12 month
ECL. None of the balances with banks at the end of the
reporting period are past due, and taking into account
the historical default experience and the current credit
ratings of the bank, management anticipates that there
is no impairment, and hence have not recorded any loss
allowances on these balances.

Closing balance
Amounts recognised in the
consolidated statement of
profit or loss
Current service cost
Loss on settlements
Interest expense
Amounts recognised in
consolidated statement of
other comprehensive income
Effect of changes in demographic
assumptions
Effect of changes in financial
assumptions
Effect of experience adjustments

2019
AED’000

10,223
183
2,227

8,866
2,820

12,633

11,686

(872)

561

5,157
(4,104)

5,856
(98)

181

6,319

Significant actuarial
assumptions		
Discount rate
2%
3%
Rate of salary increase
3% for all 3% for all
entities
entities
except
for the
subsidiary
in Kuwait
5% p. a.

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

Current liabilities:		
Credit facilities
230,651
Short term loan
55,936
Bank overdrafts
Term loans
11,971

281,755
36,489
21,775
173,418

298,558

513,437

Non-current liabilities		
Term loans
237,488

8,115

TERMS AND REPAYMENT SCHEDULE
2020

Amounts in AED’000

2019

Year of
maturity

Face value /
limit

Carrying
amount

Face value /
limit

Carrying
amount

LIBOR/ EIBOR/
KIBOR/SAIBOR/
EURIBOR mid
corridor rate +
margin*

2020 /
2021

197,770

55,936

260,325

58,264

USD / AED

LIBOR/ EIBOR +
margin *

2020 /
2021

867,250

230,651

730,525

281,755

Term loan 1***

USD

LIBOR + margin*

2020

-

-

165,303

165,303

Term loan 2****

USD

LIBOR + margin*

2025

183,670

183,670

-

-

Term loan 3*****

KWD

KIBOR + margin*

2026

21,729

21,729

17,137

16,230

Term loan 4******

SAR

SAIBOR + margin*

2025

44,060

44,060

48,950

-

1,314,479

536,046

1,222,240

521,552

Currency

Interest
Rate

Short term loans /
bank overdrafts

USD/ AED/
EGP/ KWD/
TRY / SAR /
EUR

Credit facilities**

Total

Sensitivity analysis		

* Margin on the above loans and facilities varies from 0.4 % - 0.95 % (2019:
0.40 % - 0.95%) for UAE and 0.5 % - 2.85 % (2019: 0.50 % - 3 %) for overseas
credit facilities.

Discount rate		
- 50 basis points
4,200
4,165
+ 50 basis points
(3,920)
(3,877)

** Credit facilities mainly include facilities with face value AED 385,000
thousand (2019: 350,000 thousand) and credit facility (Capex) of face value
AED 15,000 thousand (2019: AED 15,000 thousand).

Salary increase rate		
- 50 basis points
3,935
3,892
+ 50 basis points
(4,182)
(4,148)

*** The Group settled the loan of AED 165,303 thousand in full during 2020.

The Group expects total benefit payments of AED 10,637
thousand in 2021 (2019: AED 10,729 thousand in 2020).

121

2020
AED’000

15 BANK BORROWINGS
Contractual terms of the Group’s interest bearing loans and
borrowings is as follows:
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**** The Group has availed a long-term loan of AED 183,670 thousand
(equivalent to USD 50,000 thousand) for a tenure of five years repayable in
2025. The loan payment term is a bullet repayment at maturity.

***** One of the Group’s subsidiaries, availed a loan of AED 21,209
thousand (equivalent to KWD 1,750 thousand) for a tenure of four years
repayable in 2022. During the year, the Group refinanced this loan with
another bank for AED 21,574 thousand (equivalent to KWD 1,800) for a
tenure of six years repayable in 2026 and secured by bank guarantee of
50% from the Group and the remaining 50% from a third party.
****** One of the Group’s subsidiaries, availed a long term facility of AED
48,950 thousand (equivalent to SAR 50,000 thousand) for a tenure of five
years till 2025 to be repaid one semi-annual instalments. The facility is
secured by corporate guarantee of 100% from the Group.
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BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

17

Changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities, which are those for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated statement
of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities are as follows:
2019
AED’000

Changes from financing cash flows related to borrowing		
Opening balance			
Proceeds / (Settlements) of long-term loans, net		
Settlements of other borrowings excluding overdrafts, net		
Interest paid			

521,552
241,340
(205,071)
(14,692)

520,061
(6,501)
(1,915)
(21,226)

Total changes from financing cash flow			

21,577

(29,642)

Other changes / liability related		
Interest expense			
Changes in overdrafts and accruals			
Total liability related other changes			

12,596
(19,679)
(7,083)

20,496
10,637
31,133

Closing balance			

536,046

521,552

Trade payables
Accrued expenses
Other payables

2019
AED’000

150,031
222,231
145,839

137,384
198,196
110,611

518,101

446,191

18 SHARE CAPITAL
Share capital includes issued and fully paid 600,000
thousand shares of a par value of AED 1 each.
2020
AED’000

Authorised share capital
(ordinary shares of AED 1 each)
Issued and fully paid share capital

16

2020
AED’000

21

2019
AED’000

1,200,000

1,000,000

600,000

600,000

LEASE LIABILITIES

Opening balance
At 1 January 2019 upon adoption of IFRS 16
Lease liabilities for the year
Payments made during the year
Interest cost

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

74,030
23,378
(28,313)
3,138

32,488
62,773
(24,400)
3,169

72,233

74,030

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

18,979
53,254

16,932
57,098

72,233

74,030

Lease liabilities as at 31 December 2020 shown as follows:

Current
Non-current

The Group does not have a significant liquidity risk regarding its lease liabilities and does not
have any variable component in lease payments.
Maturity analysis for the Group lease liabilities is as follows:

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

18,979
41,846
11,408

16,932
37,858
19,240

72,233

74,030

20 DIVIDEND
At the Annual General Meeting held on 16 April 2020, the
shareholders’ approved payment of AED 90,000 thousand
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (at the Annual General
Meeting held on 28 March 2019 approved payment of AED
90,000 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2018)
as cash dividend which represents 15% (2018: 15%) of the
issued and paid up share capital of the Company.

During the Annual General Assembly held on 24 March
2016, the shareholders’ approved resolutions for
authorised capital of AED 1 billion. On 9 February 2020,
the shareholders approved resolutions to increase the
authorised capital to AED 1,200,000 thousand, keeping the
issued and paid up capital of AED 600,000 thousand.
On 28 December 2020, the Board of Directors approved the
issuance of mandatory convertible bonds with a nominal
value of AED 1 each in an aggregate principal amount of
AED 450,000 thousand (at a conversion price of AED 3.75 per
share) as the acquisition price to acquire Al Foah Company
LLC. On 6 January 2021 and as a result of converting the
bond, the Company issued and fully paid share capital
increase from 600,000 thousand shares to 720,000 thousand
shares with a nominal value of AED 1 each. (see note 34)

19 LEGAL RESERVE
In accordance with the UAE Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 and
the Company’s Articles of Association, as amended, 10%
of the profit for each year attributable to the owners of the
Company is transferred to the legal reserve until this reserve
equals 50% of the paid up share capital. The legal reserve is
restricted and not available for distribution.

COST OF SALES

Raw materials
Salaries and benefits
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Utilities
Maintenance
Rent expenses
Amortisation of right-of-use assets
Transportation
Others

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

1,066,171
142,108

1,005,848
148,358

92,319
42,192
29,813
4,340
4,007
11,181
28,485

92,513
46,358
32,787
6,882
2,353
12,399
34,796

1,420,616

1,382,294

Cost of raw materials for flour and feed products is
stated after the deduction of the Abu Dhabi Government
compensation amounting to AED 120,440 thousand (2019:
AED 121,383 thousand). The purpose of the compensation
is to partially reduce the impact of increased and volatile
global grain prices on food retail prices for the consumers in
the Emirate of Abu Dhabi (see note 11).

22

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits
Marketing expenses
Transportation
Amortisation of right-of-use assets
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Rent expense
Maintenance
Royalty fees
Utilities
Training and consulting
Others

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

202,654
39,490
44,732
21,599

198,329
42,300
46,692
15,113

9,297
3,554
6,800
2,536
5,511
1,398
19,443

9,360
7,259
6,698
3,854
7,526
1,320
19,567

357,014

358,018

123

2020
AED’000

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
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GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

24

25

26

2019
AED’000

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

101,503

80,223

20,496

62,066
13,702
18,483

29,844
10,972
10,903

Interest expense on borrowings (note 15) 12,596
Interest expense on lease liabilities
(note 16)
3,138
Foreign exchange gain / (loss)
1,619

3,169
(1,444)

17,353

22,221

6,155
4,532
2,459
180
25,060

4,771
2,414
2,471
2,256
24,637

234,140

168,491

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

6,301

5,814

228
918

270
847

7,447

6,931

OTHER (EXPENSE) / INCOME

Income on sale of raw
materials / scrap
Management fee
Gain on sale of property, plant
and equipment
Impairment of property, plant
and equipment
Others

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

2,225
540

3,015
540

442

78

(7,970)
(4,463)

6,120

(9,226)

9,753

28 INCOME TAX AND ZAKAT
The Group’s operation in Egypt, Turkey and Oman are
subject to corporate taxation. Provision is made for taxes at
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the consolidated
statement of financial position date on taxable profits
of overseas subsidiaries in accordance with the fiscal
regulations of the countries in which they operate.
Further, the Group’s operation in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia is subject to Zakat. Zakat is provided in accordance
with the Regulations of the General Authority of Zakat and
Tax (GAZT) in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia on accrual basis.
The provision is charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Differences, if any, resulting from the final
assessments are adjusted in the year of their finalisation.

29 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by
dividing the Group profit for the year attributable to the
owners of the Company by the weighted average number of
shares in issue throughout the year.
2020

2019

Profit for the year attributable to
the Owners of the Company (AED’000) 34,471

137,026

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue
throughout the year (‘000)
Basic and diluted earnings
per share (AED)

FINANCE INCOME

Interest income
Gain on derivative financial asset
Others

30	CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2020
AED’000

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Salaries and benefits
Depreciation on property, plant
and equipment
Others

FINANCE EXPENSE

2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

19,150
2,434

19,691
1,194
132

21,584

21,017

600,000

600,000

0.057

0.228

As of 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group has not issued
any instruments that have an impact on earnings per share
when exercised and accordingly diluted earnings per share
are the same as basic earnings per share.
On 6 January 2021, the Company issued and fully paid share
capital increase from 600,000 thousand shares to 720,000
thousand shares with a nominal value of AED 1 each.

2020 AED’000

2019 AED’000

73,648

20,090

129

71,736

59,913

42,044

Bank guarantees
Letters of credit
Capital commitments

Bank guarantees and letters of credits were issued in the
normal course of business. These include deferred payment
credit, performance bonds, tender bonds, deferred payment
bills, inward bill and margin deposit guarantees.

31 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Calculation of the Group’s material Non-Controlling Interests (“NCI”) is as follows:
2020 AED’000

2019 AED’000

50%

50%

91,783
15,609
(21,198)
(26,871)

94,175
10,199
(10,295)
(37,010)

Net assets

59,323

57,069

Net assets attributable to NCI

29,662

28,535

30,569
(28,468)

23,240
(25,288)

Net income / (loss)

2,101

(2,048)

Net income / (loss) attributable to NCI

1,050

(1,024)

154

(168)

77

(84)

1,127

(1,108)

NCI percentage
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Revenue
Expenses

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income / (loss) attributable to NCI
Total comprehensive income / (loss) attributable to NCI

32

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

CREDIT RISK
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date is as follows:

Trade receivables, net
Other receivables
Due from related parties
Government compensation receivable
Cash at banks

Notes

2020 AED’000

2019 AED’000

10
10
12
11
13

434,293
61,349
408
12,451
772,517

478,879
54,802
1,115
27,782
635,331

		
1,281,018
1,197,909
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful
receivables as calculated using Expected Credit Loss approach based on lifetime expected
credit losses using the Group’s management prior experience and the current economic
environment adjusted for forward looking factors. The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk, with overall exposure being spread over a large number of customers.

125

Salaries and benefits
Allowance for impairment loss of
trade receivables
Maintenance
Legal and professional fees
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Rent expense
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of right-of-use assets
Others
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

LIQUIDITY RISK
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that
it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses.
The Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational and
capital expenditures in accordance with the Group’s working capital requirements, including
servicing financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances
that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

As at 31 December 2020:
Amounts in AED’000

Carrying
value

Contractual
cash flows

Up to
1 year

1-2
years

2-5
years

More than
5 years

Trade and other payables
Due to related parties
Bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

518,101
4,895
536,046
72,233

518,101
4,895
564,026
80,822

518,101
4,895
310,918
22,066

17,181
22,933

231,483
23,472

4,444
12,351

1,131,275

1,167,844

855,980

40,114

254,955

16,795

As at 31 December 2019:
Amounts in AED’000

Carrying
value

Contractual
cash flows

Up to
1 year

1-2
years

2-5
years

More than
5 years

Trade and other payables
Due to related parties
Bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

446,191
9,285
521,552
74,030

446,191
9,285
528,762
86,440

446,191
9,285
520,382
19,667

6,749
16,297

1,631
27,147

23,329

1,051,058

1,070,678

995,525

23,046

28,778

23,329

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group’s objectives for managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an efficient capital structure to
optimise the cost of capital. In maintaining an appropriate
capital structure and providing returns for shareholders in
2020, the Group provided returns to shareholders in the
form of dividends for the year 2019 results, current details
of which are included in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

Management anticipates that the Group’s exposure to currency
risk is limited as the Group’s currency and Saudi Riyals (“SAR”)
are pegged to USD. The fluctuation in exchange rates against
TRY, KWD, EGP, Euro, and OMR are monitored on a continuous
basis and the Group uses forward currency contracts to
eliminate significant currency exposures if required.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
The Group measures financial instruments such as other
financial assets at fair value at each consolidated statement
of financial position date.

A strengthening or weakening of these currencies by 0.5%
against all other currencies would not have a material effect
to the measurement of the Group’s financial instruments
denominated in foreign currency and would not have a
material effect on the Group’s consolidated equity and its
consolidated profit and loss.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
interest bearing obligations with floating interest rates.
As at the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Group’s
interest-bearing financial instruments was as follows:
2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

Fixed rate instruments		
Financial assets
595,042

561,590

Variable rate instruments		
Financial liabilities
608,279

595,582

The fair value of the Group’s financial instruments is not
materially different from their carrying amount.
As at 31 December 2020, if interest rates on interest bearing
borrowings had been 0.5% higher / lower with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit for the year
would have been AED 2,285 thousand (2019: AED 2,595
thousand) lower / higher, mainly as a result of higher / lower
interest expense.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants as at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:
• In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability
The fair value hierarchy levels have been defined as follows:
Level 1: 	quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities.
Level 2: 	inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as priced) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).
Level 3: 	inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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Contractual maturities of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the reporting date are as follows:

MARKET RISK
Foreign currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of the Group financial
instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. Currency risk arises when future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in currency that’s not the Group’s currency. The
Group exposure to foreign currency risk is primarily limited
to transactions in Turkish Lira (“TRY”), Kuwaiti Dinar (“KWD”),
Egyptian Pounds (“EGP”), Euro (“EUR”), United State Dollars
(“USD”), Omani Riyals (“OMR”) and Saudi Riyals (“SAR”).
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• Business operations in the State of Kuwait, represented
by Al Rammah National for General Trading and
Contracting Company WLL, is manufacturing and
distribution of drinking water; and
•B
 usiness operations in the Republic of Turkey, represented
by Agthia Grup Icecek ve Dagitim Sanayi ve Ticaret Limited
Sirketi, is production, bottling and sale of bottled water.
– F ood includes manufacturing and distribution of tomato
and chili paste, fruit concentrate, frozen vegetables, fresh
dairy products and frozen baked products. The Group’s
business operations with a similar nature of Food are as
follows:

The following summary describes the operations in each of
the Group’s reportable segment:

CONSUMER BUSINESS DIVISION (“CBD”)
– Bottled Water and Beverages include manufacturing and
distribution of drinking water, water based drinks and
juices. The Group’s business operations with a similar
nature of Bottled Water are as follows:
• P
 art of United Arab Emirates business operations,
represented by Al Ain Food & Beverages PJSC, is
manufacturing and distribution of drinking water, flavored
water, and juices;
• Business operations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,
represented by Delta Bottled Water Factory Company
Limited, is manufacturing and distribution of drinking
water;
• Business operations in the United Arab Emirates,
represented by, Al Bayan Purification and Potable Water
LLC, is manufacturing and distribution of drinking water;
Agri Business
Division (ABD)
Flour and animal
feed
2020
2019
AED’000 AED’000

• B
 usiness operations in the Arab Republic of Egypt,
represented by Agthia Group Egypt LLC, is processing and
sale of tomato paste, chili paste, fruit concentrates, and
frozen vegetables; and
• Part of the business operations in the United Arab
Emirates, represented by Al Ain Food & Beverages PJSC, is
manufacturing and distribution of yogurt, tomato paste,
frozen vegetables, frozen baked products and trading
products.
Information regarding the results of each reportable
segment is included below. Performance is measured
based on segment profit, as included in the internal
management reports data reviewed by the Group’s
executive management. Segment profit is used to
measure performance as management believes that such
information is the most relevant in evaluating the results
of certain segments relative to other entities that operate
within these industries.

Consumer Business
Division (CBD)
Bottled water and
Food
beverages
2020
2019
2020
2019
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

CBD Total
2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

Total segments
2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

Revenues
Intra-group

964,875
(29,588)

900,935 811,923
(9,263) (13,264)

911,830 366,681
(11,791) (39,411)

257,061 1,178,604
(9,509) (52,675)

1,168,891 2,143,479 2,069,826
(21,300) (82,263) (30,563)

External revenues

935,287

891,672 798,659

900,039 327,270

247,552 1,125,929

1,147,591 2,061,216 2,039,263

Gross profit

231,191

204,073 366,140

419,892

53,920

40,439

420,060

460,331

651,251

664,404

Reportable segment
profit / (loss)
131,291

117,831 (19,828)

81,180

10,888

6,305

(8,940)

87,485

122,351

205,316

Material non-cash item										
Impairment
losses on trade
receivables, net
10,365
5,093 51,701
24,361
390
51,701
24,751
62,066
29,844

31 December
2020
AED’000

Consumer Business
Division (CBD)

31 December
2019
AED’000

31 December
2020
AED’000

31 December
2019
AED’000

Total segments
31 December
2020
AED’000

31 December
2019
AED’000

Others:						
Segment assets
526,521
565,356
1,506,557
1,552,100
2,033,078
2,117,456
Segment liabilities
184,334
160,672
505,710
416,536
690,044
577,208
Capital expenditure
15,127
12,463
51,238
86,515
66,365
98,978
Reconciliations of reportable segments’ gross profit, finance income and expense,
depreciation, and capital expenditure are as follows:
2020

Gross profit / (loss)
Finance income
Finance expense
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Capital expenditure

2019

Reportable
segment totals
AED’000

Unallocated
AED’000

651,251
1,303
(7,895)

(10,651)
20,281
(9,458)

640,600
21,584
(17,353)

103,990
66,365

4,009
7,567

107,999
73,932

Reconciliation of reportable segments’ profit or loss for the
year is as follows:
2020
AED’000

Reportable
Consolidated
totals segment totals
AED’000
AED’000

Unallocated
AED’000

Consolidated
totals
AED’000

664,404
166
(982)

(7,435)
20,851
(21,239)

656,969
21,017
(22,221)

104,978
98,978

1,936
8,802

106,914
107,780
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AGRI BUSINESS DIVISION (“ABD”)
– Flour and Animal Feed includes manufacturing and
distribution of flour and animal feed.

Agri Business
Division (ABD)
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The Group has two reportable segments, as described
below. Reportable segments offer different products and
services and are managed separately because they require
different technology and operational marketing strategies.
For each of the strategic business units, the Group’s
executive management reviews internal management
reports on at least a quarterly basis.

Reconciliation of reportable segments’ assets and liabilities
are as follows:
2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

2019
AED’000

Segment Assets		
Total profit for reportable
Agri Business Division
526,521
565,356
segments
122,351
205,316
Consumer Business Division
1,506,557
1,552,100
Unallocated amounts		
Other operating expenses
(97,262)
(68,257)
Total assets for reportable segments 2,033,078
2,117,456
Net finance income/ (expense)
10,432
(1,057)
Other unallocated amounts
1,107,593
1,003,780
Profit for the year
35,521
136,002
Total assets
3,140,671
3,121,236
Non-controlling interests
(1,050)
1,024
Segment Liabilities		
Profit for the year attributable
Agri Business Division
184,334
160,672
to the owners of the Company
34,471
137,026
Consumer Business Division
505,710
416,536
Reconciliation of reportable segments’ gross profit for the
year is as follows:
2020
AED’000

2019
AED’000

Total gross profit for reportable
segments
Other unallocated amounts

651,251
(10,651)

664,404
(7,435)

Gross Profit for the year

640,600

656,969

Non-controlling interests

(6,405)

(4,199)

Gross profit for the year attributable
to the owners of the Company
634,195

652,770

Total liabilities for reportable
segments
Other unallocated amounts
Total liabilities

690,044
522,456

577,208
554,308

1,212,500

1,131,516
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Al Foah is a Limited Liability Company incorporated in UAE.
Al Foah main objectives are to take responsibility for a
number of date production and processing assets, as well as,
a number of dates receiving centres across the UAE. Al Foah’s
product portfolio consists of a wide range of high-quality
UAE grown whole dates, value added dates and date-based
products including date syrup, date paste and date halwa.
The carrying book values of the assets and liabilities of Al
Foah as at 31 December 2020 were as follows:
Carrying book value
AED’000

Al Faysal Bakery is a limited liability company incorporated
in Kuwait. Al Faysal main objective is the manufacturing and
trading in foodstuff. Al Faysal Bakery known as the most
reputable bakery, with strong brand heritage and with a
preferred portfolio. Al Faysal Bakery acquisition will support
the Group’s strategic growth considering the bakery’s strong
market share, as well as distribution and manufacturing
capabilities.

DOWNLOAD
OUR INVESTOR
RELATIONS APP

The carrying book values of the assets and the liabilities of Al
Faysal Bakery as at 31 December 2020 were as follows:
Carrying book value
AED’000

Property, plant and equipment		
11,057
Trade and other receivables		
13,467
Cash and bank balances		
16,246
Inventories		
4,925
Other assets		
9,738
Other liabilities		
(5,864)
Trade and other payables		
(10,919)
Borrowings		
(4,175)
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits
(7,675)
Net identifiable assets acquired		

26,800

Property, plant and equipment		
181,259
Inventories		
118,969
Trade and other receivables		
147,225
Cash and bank balances		
46,494
Due from related parties		142,375
Other assets		
10,227
Other liabilities		
(4,694)
Trade and other payables		 (240,598)
Government grants		
(41,267)
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits
(31,651)
Net identifiable assets acquired		

328,339
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ACQUISITION OF AL FOAH COMPANY LLC
During 2020, the Company’s Board of Directors received an
offer from General Holding Corporation PJSC (SENAAT) (the
“Seller”) whereby the Seller will transfer 100% stake of the
issued share capital of Al Foah Company LLC (“Al Foah”) to
the Company in considerations of the issuance of mandatory
convertible instruments to be converted into ordinary shares
in the share capital of the Company (the “Transaction”).
At the General Assembly held on 9 November 2020, the
shareholders approved the Transaction and the issuance
of a mandatory convertible bonds with a nominal value of
AED 1 each in an aggregate principle amount of AED 450,000
thousand (at a conversion price of AED 3.75 per share) to the
Seller as the acquisition price to be paid by the Company to
acquire Al Foah. Subsequently on 5 January 2021, Securities
and Commodities Authority approved the conversion of
the bond and the amendment of the Company’s articles of
association which was also the date when the control over Al
Foah was transferred to the Company.

ACQUISITION OF AL FAYSAL BAKERY AND SWEETS
COMPANY WLL
On 25 November 2020, the Company’s Board of Directors
approved the entry into a Sale and Purchase Agreement (the
“SPA”) in respect of the acquisition of 100% stake in Al Faysal
Bakery and Sweets Company WLL (the “Al Faysal Bakery”)
in considerations of initial cash payment of KWD 13,260
thousand (equivalent to c. AED 158,947 thousand). The
Group and the Seller satisfactory addressed all completion
arrangements stipulated within the SPA on 26 January 2021.
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